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Report of Independent Auditor

Honorabie Board of County Commissioners
Fremont County Courthouse
Lander, Wyoming

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
component unit, the aggregate discretely presented component units,
each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information of Fremont
County, Wyoming (“the County”), as of and for the year ended June 30,
2011, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements,
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the management of Fremont County, Wyoming. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based
on our audit.

Except as discussed in the following paragraph regarding the Fremont
County Solid Waste Disposal District, we conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

We were unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence related to
management’s estimate of the closure and postclosure care liability of the
Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District, a component unit of the
County, stated at $6,000,000 as of June 30, 2011.

In our opinion based upon our audit, except for the effects of such
adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be necessary had
we been able to examine sufficient evidence regarding the estimate of the
closure and post closure liability, the financial statements referred to in the
first paragraph above, present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business—
type activities, each major fund, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, and the aggregate remaining fund information, of the
Fremont County, Wyoming as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011,
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended on conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

3




in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a separate
report dated January 20, 2012, on our consideration of the County's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
faws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financiai reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemnment Auditing Standards
and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
the management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on
pages 6 through 12 and 24 and 25 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context, We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the County’s financial statements as a whole. The
other supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the
financial statements. The other supplementary information and the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.
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NOTICE

The accompanying basic financial statements, supplementary information, and
our report of independent auditor are for the purpose of meeting local and state
requirements and are for the use of those entities, management and the Board,
and should not be used or relied upon by any other party for any purpose.
Additional users of these basic financial statements, supplementary information
and our report of independent auditor are hereby advised that the liability of
DeCoria, Maichel & Teague, P.S. to third party users who use or rely on this
information may be limited pursuant to 1995 Wyo. Sess. Laws, Chapter 155
creating Wyo. Stat. §33-3-201. However, the basic financial statements and our
report of independent auditor are a matter of public record and their distribution
is not limited.

DeCoria, Maichel & Teague, P.S.
Spokane, Washington

January 20, 2012




Fremont County, Wyoming
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2011

As management of Fremont County, Wyoming, we offer readers of our financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

These financial statements include not only Fremont County itself (known as the primary government), but
also six legally separate entities for which the County is financially accountable. The discretely presented
compaonent units are comprised of. Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District, Fremont County Weed
and Pest Control District, Fremont County Fair Board, Fremont County Library Board, Fremont County
Museum Board, and Fremont County Recreation Board. Financial information for these discretely
presented component units is included in these financial statements but is reported separately from the
financial information of the primary government. The following discussion will focus on the primary
government. Unless stated otherwise ali information pertains to the primary government alane.

Financial Highlights

As of June 30, 2011, Fremont County had $30.5 million of cash and investments. This excludes amounts
held in fiduciary funds and belonging to other entities. In addition, the County owns capital assets
(property and equipment) valued at $89.5 million, net of accumuiated depreciation. This amount includes
infrastructure (roads and bridges). The County had $3.8 million of other assets, primarily property taxes
receivable, and $4.2 million of liabilities. '

The assets of Frement County exceeded liabilities by $129.3 million (net assefs) at the close of fiscal year
2011, Of this amount, $15.6 milion is available for the County's general obligations to citizens and
creditors (unrestricted net assets). $99.5 milion is invested in capital assets, and the $14.2 million
remaining portion of net assets (restricted net assets) is restricted for specific purposes as detailed on the
statement of net assets {page 13).

During fiscal 2011, Fremont County had $27.8 million of revenues, $30.7 million of expenses, and the
transfer of the new Lander Library addition valued at $5.9 million. The County's total net assets
decreased $8.4 million (6.3%).

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Fremont County, Wyoming's basic
financial statements. The County's basic financial statements include three compoenents; 1} government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The
report alsc contains other supplementary information that foliows the notes to the financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial statements are designed to
Erovide readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private sector
usiness,

The statement of net assets (page 13) presents information on ail of the County's assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assefs. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities (pages 14-15) presents information showing how the government’s net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future pericds {e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are primarily
supperted by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges {business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the County include general government, public safety, roads
and bridges, sanitation, culture and recreation, health and welfare, economic development, and support
services. The business-type activities of the County include an ambulance service and an economic
development revelving loan fund.

In addition, a combining statement of net assets and a combining statement of activities for the hon-major
component units can be found on pages 72-73.
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Fremont Coung, Wyoming _
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2011

Fund financlal statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements. All of the
funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial staterents. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on cumrent sources
and uses of spendable resources, and on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing
reguirements.

The County maintains thirty-one individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Road Construction Special Revenue Fund, and the
Detention Facility Trust Permanent Fund. These three funds are considered to be major funds. Data from
the other twenty-eight governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual
fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The County adopts an annual budget for all governmental funds as required by state law. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate its compliance with the
budget. A budgetary comparison schedule for the Detention Facility Trust Permanent Fund, non-maégr

funds and all component units is also included with the other supplementary information on page

Budgetary comparison schedules for capital project funds are on pages 60-63.
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 16-18 of this report.

Proprietary funds - The County maintains two types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-fype activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its ambulance service and its economic
development revolving loan fund. internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and
allocate costs internally among the County’s various functions. The County uses internal service funds to
account for a seif-insured employee health benefit plan, a property and equipment internal leasing
program, emergency dispatch services, unemployment benefits, an investment pool, and fue! distribution.
These services are primarily included in governmental activities and to a small extent in business type
activities on a pro-rata basis.

Proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail for each fund. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Ambulance and Revolving Loan Fund. All of the internal service funds are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for
the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in other

supplementary information.
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 19-21 of this report.

Fiduciary funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because
the resources of those funds are not available to support the County's own programs. The basic fiduciary
fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-23.

Notes to the financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to
understanding the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 28-48 of this report.

Other information - A schedule of Wyoming state assistance is presented on page 49. A schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented on pages 100-101. The combinin% statements referred to
earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds and internal service funds are presented on
pages 54-59 and 64-67, respectively. Also, fund financial statements for each of the six component units

are presented on pages 68-92.




Fremont County, Wyoming
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2011

Government-wlde Financial Analysis

Fremont County's assets exceed liabilities by a total of $130 million (net assets). Assets total $134 million
with 23% of that being cash and investments and 74% capital assets (property and equipment). Total net
assets of the primary government decreased $8.4 million (6.1%) during fiscal year 2011. While Cash and
investments were relatively unchanged, capital assets decreased $7.4 million (6.9%) and current liabiiities
increased $1.3 million (47%).

The component units had $20.2 million of net assets. The component units' net assets increased by $6.0
million (42%) due primarily to the completion of the Lander Library addition at a cost of $5.9 million. The
companent unit's assets ($27.6 million) consisted of $4.7 million (17%) cash and investments and $21,3
million 5??%) capital assets. Capital assets belongi&? to the component units increased in value by $6.0
million for reasons previously explained. The Solid Waste Disposal District, has estimated liability of $6.0
million for closure and post closure care costs.

Governmental activities - Governmental activities account for 97% of both total assets and net assets.
Total revenues decreased $4.5 million (14%) from fiscal year 2010 to 2011. Property taxes decreased
$2.9 million (27%) due to lower natural gas prices. Sales and use tax decreased $1.4 miltion (23%).
Investment earnings decreased $0.7 million {80%) due loss in investment value. Total expenses
increased $1.4 milion (5.2%). Public safety expenses increased $0.5 million (3.9%). Culture and
recreation expenses increased $0.4 million due to a $0.5 million transfer to the Library's operating budget
from the Library Excess Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund. Economic development expenses increased
$0.4 million due to final work on the remodel the former Aico Building in Riverton.

Business-type activities - Business-type activities account for only 3% of both the County's total assets
and net assets, Assets belonging to the business-type activities total $3.9 million, of which 32% is cash
and investments, 61% is capital assets, and the remainder is primarily ambulance service accounts
receivable and inventary. Liabilities total $103 thousand. Net assets total $3.8 million with 62% invested
in capital assets and 38% unrestricted. Charges for ambulance services comprise 93% of total revenues.
Capital grants decreased $0.4 million foliowing the completion of the Lander Ambulance facility in 2610,

FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
NET ASSETS
{In thousands of dollars)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Total
Activities

2010/11 2009/10 2010/11 2009/10 2010/11 2009/10

Cash and investments $ 29,262 $ 29,827 $ 1,235 $ 1,041 $ 30,497 $ 30,868
Capital assets 97,128 104,435 2,369 2,449 99,497 106,884
Other assets 3,550 2,916 291 363 3841 3,279
Total Assets 129,940 137,178 3,895 3,853 133,835 141,031
Current liabilities 4,399 2,697 93 145 4,492 2,842
Long-term liabilities 14 80 10 35 24 116
Total Liabilities 4,413 2,777 103 180 4,518 2,957
Net assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of refated debt 97,123 104,384 2,369 2,449 99,492 106,833
Restricted 14,229 13,419 0 0 14,229 13,419
Unrestricted 14,175 16,598 1,423 1,224 15,598 17,822
Total Net Assets 125,527 134,401 3,792 3,673 129,319 138,074
8
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Fremont Coung, Wyoming .
iscussion and Analysis

Management's
June 30, 2011

Program revenues
Charges for services

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General revenues
Property taxes

Federal payment in lieu of taxes
State sales and use tax

State severance tax
State assistance
Investment earnings
Other

Total Revenues

Expenses

General government
Public safety

Roads and bridges
Sanitation

Culture and recreation

Health and welfare
Education

Economic development

Support services
Ambulance services
Total Expenses

Loss on disposition of assets

Special item — Transfer new Lander
Library to component unit

Increase in net assets

Net Assets - July 1
Net Assets - June 30

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
(In thousands of dollars)

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2010411 2009/10 201011 2009/10 2010/11 2009/10
$ 3,001 $2930 $ 1585 § 1,598 $ 4876 $ 4,528
4,209 4,019 5 0 4,214 4,019
2,458 2,362 88 507 2,548 2,869
7,718 10,625 0 0 7,716 10,625
2,134 1,850 0 0 2,134 1,850
4,603 5,969 0 0 4,603 5,969
401 411 0 0 401 411
884 1,095 0 0 884 1,095
169 855 18 45 187 900
473 510 1 65 474 575
26,138 30,626 1,697 2,215 27,835 32,841
3,754 3,954 0 0 3,754 3,054
12,576 12,102 0 0 12,576 12,102
4,662 4,814 0 0 4,662 4,814
52 48 0 0 52 48
1,268 363 0 0 1,268 363
1,976 1,885 0 0 1,976 1,885
19 0 0 0 19 0
794 346 0 0 794 346
4,050 3,805 0 0 4,050 3,905
0 0 1,678 1,470 1,678 1,470
29,151 27 417 1,578 1,470 30,729 26,887
(142) 0 0 0 (142) 0
(5,867) 0 0 0 {5,857) 0
{9,022) 3,209 119 745 (8,903) 3,954
134,549 131,192 3673 2,928 138,222 134,120
$ 125,627 134,401 $ 3792 $ 3673 $129319 $138074

Governmental funds - The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-

term inflows, cutflows, and balances of spendable resources.

(Refer to pages 16 and 17.}) Such

information is useful in assessing the County's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund
balance serves as a useful measure of government's net resources available for spending at the end of

the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $26.0 million, down from $28.0 million the prior year. 35% of this total fund balance (39.2
million) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the County's discretion,
$3.7 million (14%) is non-spendable fund balance. The remaining $13.1 million is restricted or committed
for specific purposes as reported on page 16.




Fremont County, Wyoming
Management's Discussion and Analysis
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Program Revenues and Expenses
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Fremont Coung, Wyoming _
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2011

Governmental funds — (continued)

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County and accounts for 80% of governmental fund
revenues. Total General Fund fund balance decreased 12.5 % to $12.9 million. 91% of the General Fund
fund balance is unassigned and thus available for spending at the Gounty's discretion. Of the remaining
$1.2 million fund balance, $0.9 million is invested in inventory. As a measure of the general fund's
liquidity, it is useful to compare unassigned fund balance to total expenditures and tfransfers out.
Unassigned fund balance represents 53% of total expenditures and transfers out compared to 81% for the
prior year.

General fund revenues and other sources decreased by $2.3 million to $20.4 million, Property tax
revenue decreased 29% ($2.8 million} due primarily to decreased natural gas prices. Intergovernmental
revenue increased $0.9 million including a $0.3 increase in federal payment in lieu of taxes (PILT), $0.2
million igcrease in sales and use tax and $0.5 million increase in state and federal reimbursements due to
the 2010 flood.

General Fund expenditures and other uses increased $0.2 million to $22.2 million. Major changes were
a $0.3 million increase in Culture and Recreation due to contributions towards capital improvements at the
County Fair Grounds, $0.3 million increase in Health and Welfare due to a settlement with the Lander
Valley Medical Center to pay statutory medical claims and a $0.4 million decrease capital outlay primarily
in County Roads and Bridges. Total General Fund personnel costs decreased slightly (0.7%). No major
road improvements were paid with General Fund money in 2011, This is down from $0.9 million in 2010
and $2.0 million in 2009.

The Detention Facility Trust Permanent Fund is a major fund of Fremont County with a fund balance of
$4.2 million. $2.8 million of that fund balance is a non-spendable endowment

The Road Construction Special Revenue Fund is another major fund having a fund balance of $4.6 up
from $4.1 million for 2010. $335 thousand was transferred to road projects in 2011 and commitments
have been made for another $4.3 million. The table below summarizes major road construction projects.
See pages 60 to 63 for more details.

Expenditures {thousands)

Major road projects 2011 Prior Budget Funded by
Lyons Valley Road Phase !l $ 0 $ 2,858 3,760  General Fund
ortimore Bridge Replacement 31 0 1,407  Federal and State
Burma Road Phase 1 1,043 142 6,902  State and Road Const. SRF
Baldwin Creek Road 7 0 400 Road Const SRF
Various other projects 137 1 1,111 various

The Lander Library Capital Project Fund is no longer considered a major fund having been completed
in 2010. The project to date revenues and expenditures are displayed on page 60. $6.58 million of the
total budget amount of $6.64 million was expended on this project through the end of 2011 fiscal year.

Proprietary funds - The Ambulance Services’ assets ($3.9 million) consisted of $1.2 million of cash and
investments (31 %%, $2.4 million capital assets (61%) and $0.24 million accounts receivable (6%). Current
assets increased $130 thousand (10%). Capital assets remained steady at $2.4 million.

Sources of funds were primarily charges for goods and services $1.6 million (93%) and intergovernmental
grants $90 thousand (5%). Operating revenues remained steady at $1.6 milion. As a measure of
liquidity, current assets exceed current liabilities by $1.4 million.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The General Fund final budget anticipated an ending budgetary fund balance of $11.5 miliion. The County
ended the year with a $12.8 million budgetary fund balance. The most significant causes of the $1.3
million excess were: 1) Beginning fund balance was $0.3 milion more than anticipated. 2) Other
intergovernmental revenues were $0.4 million more than anticipated due to 2010 flood reimbursements.
3) Outflows including encumbrances were $1.5 million {7%) under budget. The most significant variances
were Road and Bridges ($655 thousand positive) and Statutory Medical ($239 thousand negative).

1




Fremont County, Wyoming
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2011

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capltal Assets - The County's investment in capita! assets (property, equipment, roads, and bridges) for
#ts governmental and business-type activities dropped $7.3 million (7%). to $99.5 million. The 2010 Flood
recovery utilized Road Department personnel limiting their ability to make grogress on major road projects.
The six component units’ capital assets remained increased $0.3 miltion ( %) to $15.5 million,

Debt Administration - With the exception of the Solid Waste Disposal District, the County has only $60
thousand in long-term liabilities. State statutes limit the amount of debt of the County to 2% of the
assessed valuation. The Iimit for fiscal 2011 was $15.3 million. The Solid Waste Disposal District has
$330 thousand in long-term capital iease obligations and an estimated liability for closure and postclosure
care costs estimated to be $6.0 million,

Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The 2012 General Fund budget year anticipates a $12.2 million beginning fund balance down $2.5 million
{17%) from the 2011 actual amount of $14.7 million. The 2012 actual eginning fund balance is $13.2
million.  General Fund anticipated revenue of $21.6 milion an increase of $1.1 million (5%).
Appropriations of $23.8 million represent a 1% ($0.3 million) increase over 2011 appropriation of $23.5
miflion. No new general fund appropriations for road projects have been approved. However, $4.8 million
and $0.4 million was appropriated from the Road Construction Special Revenue Fund for the Burma Road
and Baldwin Creek Road projects respectively.

Economic Factors

Demographic data from the US Census Bureau Fremont County | Wyoming
Population, 2010 40,123 563,626
Population, percent change, April 2000 to July 2010 12.1% 14.1%
Persons under 18 years old, percent, 2010 25.5% 24.0%
Persons 65 years and over, percent, 2010 14.5% 12.4%
White persons, percerit, 2010 74.3% 90.7%
American indian and Alaska Native persons, percent, 2010 21.2% 2.4%
' High school graduates, percent of persons age 25+, 2005-2009 88.8% 91.1%
Bachelor's degree or higher, percent of persons age 25+, 2005-2009 22.2% 23.2%
Housing units, 2010 17,796 261,868
Homeownership rate, 2005-2009 72.5% 69.9%
Median household income, 2009 $42,738 $ 54,400
Per capita money incoma, 2005-2009 $23,868 $ 26,925
Private nonfarm employment, 2009 11,972 214,715
Private nonfarrn employment, percent change 2000-2009 17.6% 23.0%
Average annual unemployment rate, 2010 8.0% 7.0%
Land Area, 2010 (square miles) 9,184 97,093
Persons per square mile, 2010 4.4 5.8

Component Unit Financial Statements

A copy of the audited financial statements for the Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District
component unit may be obtained by writing to the District at P.O. Box 1400, Lander, Wyoming, 82520.
None of the other component units of Fremont County have issued audited financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2011.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide an overview of the County's finances. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to
jim.massman@fremontcountygovemment.org or Fremont County Treasurer, P.O. Box 465, Lander,
Wyoming, 82520.
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ASSETS
Cash and investments In treasury (Note 4}
Other cash {Note 4}

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) (Nate 1):

Taxes

Intergovemmental and grants

Leass (Nota 10}

Accounts

Accrued interest
inventery and prepald sxpenses
Due from primary government - Agency Fund
internel batances

Capital assels net of accumulated depreciation {Notas 1 and 6)

Total assats

LIABILITIES

Cumrent Liabllities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Defarred revanues

Obligations under capital lease {Note g}
Notes payable

Compensated absences (Nate T)

Nonsurreat liabllltles:

Uhbligations under capitzl leasa (Note 9}
Notes payable

Compensated absences (Note 7)
Closure and postclosure care (Note 13)

Total liabiitims

NET ASSETS
Invesied in capltal assets, net of reiated debt
Rastricted for:
Health znd welfare
Cufture and Recreation
Debit service
Endowment
Public Safety
Road construction
Other purposes
Unrestricted (deficit}

Total et assets

FREMONT CCGUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011

Primary Government Comp t Unlts
Other
Governmantal Business-type Solld Wasta Component
Activities Actlvities Tatal Disposal District Unlig
$ 29,225,041 3 1,234,448 30,480,289 3 0 $ 285567
35,797 200 35,997 1,579,317 2873314
940,694 a 240,694 33,000 148,000
984,879 il 884 879 79,508 60,262
36,0835 0 39,835 Q 0
542 137 238,000 80,137 230,018 207,553
68,600 0 68,600 14,000 12,465
966,415 60,882 1,027,297 31,000 347 104
o o 0 168,789 238,297
7,505 {7.505) 0 0 0
87,128,157 2,389,259 99,497,416 6.407.067 14,878 507
129,839,860 3,585.284 133,835,144 8,542,710 18,052,069
3,408 651 53,189 3,462,840 240,858 417,378
0 Q 0 0 3,847
5000 1] 5,000 51,927 5000
1,232 0 1,232 0 0
982,500 40,100 1,023,000 171,302 203,200
0 Q 1] 338,144 5,000
14,141 0 14,141 Q 0
0 10,000 10,000 0 7.000
0 0 1] 8,000,000 o
4,412,924 102,289 4,516,213 6,803,032 641,425
97,123,157 2,368,259 99,482 416 6,015,996 14,888,507
2,538,113 0 2,938,113 o 0
614,776 Q 614 775 ¢ 0
50,700 0 50,700 8] 0
2,758,015 o] 2,759,015 o 0
1,840,578 o 1,240 578 a o
5,674,205 0 5,874,295 a o
51,588 0 51,588 0 0
14,174,718 1,422,738 15,597,452 (4,276,318) 3,522,137
§ 125528938 $ 3,791,893 129,316,931 3 1,739,678 5 18410,644

See Notes to Financlal Statements
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Functions/Programs
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Roads and bridges
Sanitation
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare
Education
Economic deveiopment
Support services

Total governmental activities
Business-type aclivities:
Ambulance services
Revolving loan (economic
development)

Total business-type activities
Total primary govermmesnt
Component units;

Solid Waste Disposal District

Other component units

Total component units

FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Program Revenues

Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
$ 3,753,778 $ 470,427 $ 1,158 3 86,092
12,575,842 985,123 1,608,791 233,637
4,661,762 1,339 2,086,425 1,551,056
52,483 3,760 38 0
1,268,001 0 953 57 698
1,976,085 163,528 321,245 1.850
19,044 0 0 0
793,526 2,660 4] 525,046
4,050,288 1,494,306 180,283 2,608
29,150,869 3,091,143 4,208,894 2,457,687
1,578,287 1,584,484 5,425 88,266
0 3] G Y
1,678,297 1,584,490 5,425 88,288

$ 30,728,166 $ 4675633 3 4214318 $§ 2545973

$ 5357281 § 2476482 $ 280,404 $ 0
6,781,368 1,654,802 120,368 976,088

$ 12,138,658  4131.264 $ 408,772 $ 876,088

General revenuies:
Property taxes
Federal payment in lieu of tax
State sales and use tax
State severance tax
State assistance
Investment earnings
Other revenue

Total generai revenues and transfars

Change in net assets before sale of assets and special item
Gain (loss) on sale of assefs

Special item - Transfer new Lander Library to component unit

Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning {Restated)

Net assets - ending

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Net {(Expenge) Revenue and Changes In Neat Assets

Primary Governmant Component Units
Governmental Business-type Solid Waste Other Component
Activities Activities Total Disposal District Units
$ (3,197,100} $ (3,187,100}
{9,768,391) (9,768,391}
(1,022,942) {(1,022,942)
{48,665) (48,665)
{1,208,350) (1,209,350)
{1,499,642) (1,499,642)
{19,044) (19,044)
(264,820) (264,820)
(2,363,091) (2,363,091)
(19,393,145) {18,393,145)
0 $ 93,898 99,898
0 8 8
0 98,904 89,804
$ (19393145) § 99,904 $ (19,203,241)
$ {2,591,425) L 0]
0 (4,030,110}
$ (2,591,425) $ {4,030,110)
7.718,377 0 7,716,377 2,598,145 4,186,850
2,134,431 0 2,134,431 0 0
4 603,367 0 4,603,367 0 c
401,033 0 401,033 ¢ 0
884,156 0 884,156 0 0
168,892 17,877 186,769 897 19,822
472 895 0 472,895 2,684 0
16,381,151 17,877 16,399,028 2,601,526 4,206,672
(3,011,894) 117,781 (2,894,213) 2,601,626 4,206,672
(142,282) 1,250 (144,032) 2915 7,661
(5,867,383) 0 (5,867,3683) Q 5,867,383
(9,024,659 119,031 (8,902,628) 13,016 6,051,606
134,548,595 3,672,964 138,221,559 1,726 662 12,358,038
$ 125526936 $ 3,791,885 $ 129,318,931 $ 1,739,678 $ 18,410,844

See Notes to Financial Statements
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ASSETS
Cash and investmants in treasury {Note 4}
Other cash {Note 43
Receivables, net of allowance for
uncollectibles (Mote 1):
Taxes
Intergovernmental and grants
Accounts
Agcrued intarest
inventory and prepaid sxperses
Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liakilities;

Accounts payable and accrued expensaes
Due to other funds

Deferred ravanuas

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory and prepaid expenses
Endowmant
Restricted for:
Dabt Service
Public safaty
Cufture and recreation
Health and welfare
Road Construction
Committed to:
Road Construction
Contractual obligations
Other purposes
Unassigned

Tetal fund balances

Totst liabilitiss and fund batances

FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

Road Detention
Construction Facility Trust Nanmajor Total
Special Permanent Governmantat Governmental
General Fund Revenue Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 12608132 5 4,647,305 $ 4185802 $ 4,440,583 $ 25,861,622
35,797 a] Q 0 35,797
BA2 Goa 1] a 57 898 540,694
193,209 o} a 791,670 954 878
166,498 g 2 4 166,458
158,000 4] 3] 0 18,000
835435 1] a0 1] G35 435
23,178 1,442 0 33 24,653
$ 14 863247 § 48648747 $ 4165602 § 5289982 3 28 857.578
F 1817245 3 0 b 0 § 968,679 $ 2,783,824
1,740 0 0 1442 3182
140,000 ") o 72,9683 212 953
1,858,985 a 1] 1,041,084 3 000,069
836,435 0 g 0 935,435
o 0 2,785,015 0 2,753,015
o] Q ol 66,073 B8,0V3
u] o 1,406,537 533,991 1,840,578
0 o 0 624 366 624,366
a o] a 2,835 113 2,938,113
0 394,508 0 76,824 471,332
159,755 1,897 001 o] o 2,156,756
104,072 2,257,238 a 2,541,235 4,902 545
#] ol [H 13,621 13,821
11,705,000 g a (2.545,325) 9,159,675
12,904,262 4,648,747 4,165,602 4,248 898 25,967,509
§ 14 883247 3 4548747 § 4185602 $ 5289982 $ 28967578
Total fund batances of governmental funds % 25967509
Amaunts reported for gavernmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different becausa:
1) Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
rasources and, tharefare, are not reported in the funds. The effect of
internal service funds capital assets is included in {3} below. 91,045,253
2) Certain recaivables are not available to pay current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds, 325,58%
3} Infermal service funds are used by management to charge the costs
of certain capitat assets, employee health care and unemployment
costs, and emergency dispatch services to individual funds. The
assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activitiss in the statemeant of net assets, 9,147,078
4} Long-term liabilities, including compensated absences, are rot due
in the current period end, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
The effect of internal service funds long-term lizbilities is included in
(3) above, (8583,473)

Net ag=ats of governmeral activities (paga 13)

Seg Notes to Financial Statemants
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REVENUES:

Taxes, primarily property
Licenses and fees
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investmant income
Contributions

Other revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Genaral government
Public safety
Roads and bridges
Sanitation
Culture and recreation
Heaith and welfare
Economic development
Support sarvices
Capital outlay
Debt sarvice:
Principal retirement
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess of revenuas over (under)
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Trangfers from other funds

Transfers to other funds
Sale of capital assets
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other sources
over (under) expendiiures and othar

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1 (Restated)

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30

FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Road
Construction Datantion
Special Faclilty Trust Nonmajor Total
Revanuea Permanant Governmental Governmental
General Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 7771003 % 0 3 0 3 248631 % 8,020,634
34,298 o 0 0 34,208
0,080,344 791,365 0 3,335,364 14,107,073
1,516,800 0 0 65,865 1,582,765
158,809 67,066 66,995 75,062 368,033
0 0 0 249,351 249,351
26,547 0 0 47,293 73,840
19,488,001 858,431 66,996 4,022 566 24,435,994
3,601,658 0 0 i) 3,601,658
10,378,770 0 0 1,482,873 11,861,643
2824158 o 4] 0 2,824,158
50,000 0 0 2.049 52,049
354,485 1] 0 624,001 878,466
1,433,892 0 0 435,437 1,869,329
286 468 0 0 525,945 812,443
2,329,345 ] 0 428 2,329,773
619,436 ] o 1,460,857 2,080,283
41,436 0 1} 1,201 42 837
1,782 0 0 414 2,196
21,921,440 0 0 4,533,205 26,454,645
(2,433,439) 858,431 66,956 {510,639) {2,018,651)
735,140 0 0 770,427 1,505,567
{304 349) (335411} (48,321) {817,400} {1,505,481)
18,915 0 0 0 18,815
450,706 {335411) (48,321} (48,973) 20,001
(1,982,733) 523,020 18,675 {557.612) {1,998 650)
14,886,995 4,125,727 4,146,927 4,806,510 27,066,159
$ 12,004,262 § 4648747 $ 4,165,602 $ 4248898 & 25,967,509

See Notes to Financial Statements
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities {page 14-15) are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 17)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This amount is the difference between depreciation ($3,220,365)
and capital outlay ($2,108,387) for the current period. The effects of internal service funds
capital outlays and depreciation is included below.

The completed Lander Library addition was transferred from the primary government to the
Library component unit. This transfer is not reported in the governmental funds.

The net effect of various transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales, trade-ins and
donations) is to decrease net assets. These transactions are not reflected in governmental
funds.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resoaurces are not
reperted as revenues in the funds,

Governmental funds report loan proceeds as other financing sources, and report principal
payments as expenditures. However, only the interest payment is included on the statement
of activities. Foflowing is the amount by which pringipal payments ($42,637) exceed loan
proceeds (30).

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources, and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of emergency
dispatching, capital assets, and employee health and life insurance to individual funds. The
nef revenue of these internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Change in net assets of governmentai activities (page 15)

See Notes to Financial Statements
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(1,998,650)

(1,111,978)

(5,867,384)

(153,440)

{16,221)

42 637

(29,700)

113,077

$

(9,021,659)
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments in freasury
Other cash
Receivablas (net of allowance for
Accounts
Accrued intarest
Inventory and prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Noncumrent assets:
Notes and leases receivable
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total agsets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabie and accrued expenses
Compensated absences
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Obligations under capital [ease
Compensated absences
Total nencurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrastricted

Total net assets

Some amounts reporied for business-type aclivities
in the statement of net assets are different becausa
certain internal service fund assets and liabilites are
included with business-type activities.

Net assets of business-type activities

JUNE 30, 2011

Business-type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Revolving
Ambulance Loan Fund Internal Service
Services {non-major fund) Totals Funds

$ 1,184,466 $ 35,992 $ 1,234,448 % 3,364,219
200 0 200 0
238,000 0 238,000 237,562
0 0 0 50,600
60,882 g 60,882 30,980
1,493,548 39,982 1,533,530 3,683,361
o 0 ¢ 39,835
2,369,255 0 2,369,259 6,081,904
2,369,259 0 2,369,259 6,121,739
3,862,807 39,982 3,902 789 9,805,100
53,189 +] 53,189 625727
40,100 c 40,100 34,800
93,288 C 93,289 £60,527
c 0 . 5,000
10,000 0 10,000 0
10,000 0 10,000 5,000
103,289 9] 103,289 665 527
2,369,259 0 2,369,259 6,076,071
1,350,259 39,982 1,430,241 3,063,502
$ 3759518 $ 39,582 $ 3,799,500 $ 9,139,573

See Notes to Financial Statements
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STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Business-type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Actlvities
Revoiving
Ambulance Loan Fund Internal Service
Services {non-major fund) Totals Funds
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for goods and services $ 1584484 3 6 $ 1,584490 $ 6,866,203
Other revenue 3,398 o} 3,398 411,984
Investment income 0 0 0 489,432
Total operating revenues 1,587 882 6 1,687,888 7,767,619
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries 813,323 0 813,323 433,820
Employee benefits - 247,91 0 247,991 158,450
Insurance claims and expenses 0 0 0 4,816,504
Property services 83,845 0 83845 6,931
Other purchased services 32,742 0 32,742 344,583
Supplies and materials 143,012 0 143.012 702,370
Depreciation 247 6532 0 247,653 944,960
Allacation of investment earnings 4 0 0 574,747
Total operating expenses 1,568,066 0 1,568,566 8,022,365
Operating income (loss) 19,316 5] 19,322 {254 7486)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Intergovernmental revenus 80,313 0 90,313 328,547
Investment income 19,104 {1,227} 17,877 29,093
Interest expense 0] ¢ 0 {204)
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 1,250 0 1,250 {1,708}
Total nonoparating revenues (expenses) 110667 {1,227} 109,440 356,630
Income {loss) before transfers 129,983 {1,221) 128,762 101,884
Transfer in 0 4 Q 1,460
Change in net assets 129,983 (1,221} 128,762 103,344
TOTAL NET ASSETS - JULY 1 3,629,535 41,203 3,670,738 9,036,229
TOTAL NET ASSETS - JUNE 30 $ 3,759,518 $ 39,982 $ 3,798,500 3 9,139,573

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of activities (pages 14-15} are different becatise:

Change in net assets (from above) 128,762
An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs

of employes health and life insurance to individual funds. The net

revenue of this internal service fund which is allocable to business-

type activities is reporied with them in the statement of activities, (9,731}
Change in net assets of business-type activities { page 15) $ 119,031

See Notes to Financizal Statements
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from servica users

Cash received for program loans {interest and principal}

Contributions and insurance reimbursaments
Cash paid for goods and seqvices

Cash paid to employees

Benefits paid

Investment income

Allecation of investment earnings

Net cash provided by operating activilies

FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash from operating grants

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of capital assets

Sala of capital assets

Interest paid on debt

Cash from capital grants

Principal paid on capital lease obligations
Transfer in from general fund

Borrowing from general fung

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND INVESTMENTS IN TREASURY AND OTHER CASH

Balances - July 1

Balances - Juna 30

RECONCILIATION TO BALANCE SHEET:
Cash and investments in treasury
Other cash

Balances - June 30

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income {loss}

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (joss) to net cash provided by

operating activitias-

Dapreciation

Change in assets - {increase) decrease:
Accounts receivable
Inventary and prepaid expanses
Note and lease receivabies (program loans)
Accrued inferest

Changa in liabilities - increase (decreass):
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Compensated absences

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Business-type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities -
Revolving
Ambulance Loan Fund Internal Service
Services {nonmajar fund) Totals Funds
& 1,614,832 ] 0 $ 1,614,882 3 2,449,058
o] 1,111 1,111 o
0 o a 4 800,768
{346,844} 0 (346,844) {1,068,353)
(1,066,635} u] {1,066,685) (626,109)
0 0 a {4,766,628)
Q 0 o] 473,432
"] 1] Q (574,747}
201,353 1,111 202,464 §97,421
4,500 0 4,600 Q
(167,532} 0 {167,532} {807,596)
3,750 u] 3,750 14,102
o] 4] 0 {203)
132,341 o} 132,341 542,522
0 0 o {5,000
g 0 0 1,460
0 0 0 {120,000
{31.441) ¢ (31,441) {377,7115)
19,104 {1,227} 17,877 29,993
193,516 {116) 193,400 349,659
1,001,150 40,098 1,041,248 3,014,520
$ 1,184,666 3 39 982 $ 1234643 5 3,364,219
$ 1,184,466 $ 39,982 § 1,234,448 $ 3,364,218
200 0 200 i}
$ 1,194 666 $ 39,982 § 1,234,648 3 3,364,219
$ 19,316 5 5 $ 19,322 5 {254, 746)
247,653 o 247 853 044 960
27,000 o 27,000 {30,855)
{12,319} 0 (12,319) {9.047)
o] 1,048 9,048 4,094
0 57 57 {17.600)
(75,397} o (75,397) 52,415
{4,900} 0 (4,800) 8,200
$ 201,353 ] 1,111 £ 202,464 ] 697 421

See Notes to Financia! Statements
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STATEMENTS OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

Section 125
Inmate Trust Plan Trust
Agency Fund Agency Fund Fund

ASSETS
Cash and investments in treasury S 4,851,025 3 0 $ 35,791
(Other cash 540,531 32,189 0
Receivables (nef of allowance for uncoilectibles):

Accounts 21,032 39,443 4694

Taxes 27,792,000 0 0

Accrued interest 121,000 0 0
Due from general fund 0 1,707 0
Total assets 33,325,588 73,339 40,485
LiABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 84,079 3,213 40,485
Due to general fund 0 23,178 0
Due to component units 408,097 0 0
Due to or held on behalf of others 4920412 7,535 8]
Deferred revenues 27,913,000 39,413 0
Total liabilities 33,325,588 73,339 40,485
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for plan participants $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

See Notes to Financial Statements
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section 125

Plan Trust
Fund
(nonmajor fund)

ADDITIONS

Contributions $ 411,348
DEDUCTIONS

Benefits 409,802

Forfeited contributions transferred to

Fremont County's general fund 1,546
Total deductions 411,348
Change in net assets 0
NET ASSETS - JULY 1 0
NET ASSETS - JUNE 30 $ 0

See Notes to Financial Statements
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BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE - HULY 1

RESOURCES (INFLOWS)
Vehicle registrations

Property taxes

Other taxes

Licenses and fees

Federal payment in lieu of taxes
State gascline and special fuels tax
State assistance

State sales and use tax

Cther intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services

Investment income

Other revenuas

Transfers from other funds

Sale of capital assets

Proceeds from capital leass

Amount available for appropriation

CHARGES TO APFROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS}
General govemment:

County Commissioners

County Clerk - administration

County Clerk - elections

County Treasurer

County Assessor

County Coroner

Planning

Joint Powers Capital Projects

Public Safety:
Circuit Court - Lander
Circuit Court - Riverton
Clerk of District Court
County Attornay
County Sheriff - Dispatch Center
County Sheriff - Jail Division
County Sheriff - Sheriff Division
District Court
Emergency Management
Flood - Emergency Management
Flood - Sheriff
Flood - Transportation
Flood - Vehicle Maintenance
Fremont County Fire Protection District
Public Defender
Search and Rescue
Youth Services

Reoads and Bridges:
County Roads
Local Government Assistance

Sanitation
Local Government Assistance

Culture and Recreation
Dubgis Youth Activities
FC Fair
FC Library

Health and Welfare:
Child Development Services
Family Violence
Foster Grandparent Program

FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20114

Varlance with

Actual Amount Fina! Budget -
Budgeted Amounts {Budgetary Basis) Positive
Original Final {See Note 2) {Negative}
$ 14449774 $ 14443774 $ 14,739,388 289,594
£57,000 B87,000 857 251 {29,749)
7,050,600 7,050,600 6,867 631 {182,989
53,000 93,000 46,121 (6,879
42 200 42 200 34,248 [7,802)
2,081,000 2.081,000 2134421 53,431
1,218,000 1,218,000 1,151,959 (656,041}
1,063,156 1,063,156 884,156 {179,000}
4,500,000 4,500,000 4,601,183 101,168
736,156 956,311 1,356,258 399,547
1,407,688 1,438,245 1,916,900 78,655
330,000 330,000 155,909 (171,091)
65,443 75,443 26,547 {48,856}
835,800 B55 800 735,140 (120,660}
o 0 19,915 19,915
Q 35,000 0 (35.000)
34,719,817 35,035,529 35,130,052 94,523
3 387 453 ] 387 453 ] 323,265 64,188
831,038 531,038 816,070 14 958
303,245 333,245 323,538 9,707
623,293 625,293 601,765 23,528
867,597 867 597 819,058 48,539
315,158 330,183 318,172 11,991
312140 312,140 294 481 17,659
150,000 150,000 150,600 ¢
11,283 11,283 7,981 3,302
5,785 5785 4143 1,642
168,717 368,717 351,223 17,494
1,227,325 1,277,340 1.248,712 28,628
635,464 639,464 539,464 0
3,828,202 3,959,595 3,950,287 8208
3273126 3,295 382 3,270,174 25,208
173,998 180,998 188,245 2,753
116,912 127217 129,190 (1,873)
0 2,804 (7.508) 10,312
0 1,121 1,119 2
&] 121,230 116,521 4709
1] [ {839) 839
15,000 15,000 15,600 1]
118,200 133,200 128,080 5110
27 600 122 600 119,794 2,806
307,403 307,403 280,051 27,352
3,942 841 4,000.643 3,345 486 635,157
143,000 143,000 143,000 0
50,000 50,000 50,000 0
1.000 1,000 1,000 0
335,418 348,622 348 621 1
Q 5,844 6,544 0
24,000 24,000 24,000 0
5,000 5,006 5,000 0
3,000 3,000 3,000 ]

See Notes to Financial Statements
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT

CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (QUTFLOWS) (cont)

Health and Welfare {cont.)
Framont Counseling
Fremont County Alcohol Crisis Center
Framont County Good Samaritan
Fremont County WIC
Haalth Nurse
Indigant care
Injury Prevention Resources
Predatory animals
Senior Citizens - High Country
Sanior Citizens - Lander
Senior Citizens - Riverton
Senior Citizens - Shoshoni
Soil conservation
Statutory medicaf
Wyoming Senlor Citizens

Economic Development
Agriculture department
Agriculture remode!
Riverton Regional Airport

Support services:
Advertising
Buildings maintenance
Buildings maintenancs - Jail
Communications repair
Computer services
Consulting and auditing fee
Insurance bands
Maintenance (equip. & vehicles)
Rentals
Service agreements
Talephone
Transfer to Court Assisted Supervised Treatment
Transfer to Capital Proj. Road
Transfer to Capital Prof. Building Energy Efficlent Retrofit
Transfer te Juvenile Treatment Courl
Vital statistics

Total charges to appropriations
BUDGETARY FUUND BALANCE - JUNE 30

RESERVES
Cash reserva
Inventory reserve

Total resarves

Reconclliation of total charges to appropriations - actual amounts (budgetary basis)

to total expenditures - general fund (GAAP basis):

Total Charges to Appropriations - Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis) (per above)

Qperating fransfers out are shown as other financing uses on the statement
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance of govemnmental funds

Encumbrances ars not reported as expenditures on the staternent of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balance of govermmental funds

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 33, 2011
Varianca with
Actual Amounts  Flnal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts {Budgetary Basis) Positive
Qriglnal Finat {See Note 2) {Negative}
10,000 10,000 10,000 a
85,000 95,000 95,000 [}
5,000 5,000 5,000 ]
101,573 101,573 87,168 14,405
358 421 382,488 352,085 23,383
255,000 259,285 257,488 1,789
30,000 30,000 30,000 0
3,000 3,000 3,000 0
7,000 7,000 7,000 0
23,000 23,000 23,000 0
286,000 26,000 26,000 0
4,000 4,000 4,000 0
10,000 10,000 10,000 a
300,000 300,000 530,354 {239,354)
1,000 1,000 1,000 0
241,432 242,092 236,498 5,594
6,908 6,908 0 8,508
50,000 50,000 50,000 0
37,000 37,000 30,589 6411
587,914 687,914 667,135 20,779
421,615 421,615 281,643 139,972
6,000 6,000 3,203 2,797
415,178 454,389 387,459 66,930
49,000 48,000 49,000 0
182,000 182,000 180,311 1,689
759,307 758,307 713,627 45,680
50,000 0 [ 0
47,661 52,661 51,126 1,535
16,000 16,000 7,509 8,491
47,553 47,553 47,553 0
100,000 100,000 93,307 6,683
0 76,190 0 78,180
50,445 60,445 60,445 0
500 500 316 184
22,817,705 23 505,077 22,325,861 1,175,218
$ 11,902,112 11,530,452 5 12,800,191 $ 1,269,739
10,693,982 10,522,332
1,008,120 1,008120
§ 11802112 11,5630 452
$ 22323861
(304,349)
{104,072)
§ 21921440

Total expenditures - general fund {GAAP basis) (paga17)

Sae Notes to Financial Stalements
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Fremont County, Wyoming (“the County”) have been prepared in confarmity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting bedy for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  Significant County accounting
policies are described below.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

Fremont County, Wyoming, operates under a commissioner form of government and provides the various
services as authorized by its charter including the following: public safety (sheriff), roads and bridges,
sanitation, health and social services, culture/recreation, public improvements, pianning and zoning, and
general administrative services.

The legislative branch of the County government is composed of five elected Commissioners. The
establishment and adoption of policy is the responsibility of the Coung Commissioners. In addition to the
elected Commissioners, the County elects the following officials: Clerk, Treasurer, Attorney, Clerk of
District Court, Sheriff, Assessor and Coroner.

The accompanying financial statements present the primary government, and its component units, for
which the primary government is considered to be financially accountable. The County has no oversight
responsibility for any other governmental entity since no other entities are considered fo be controlled by
or dependent on the County Control or dependence is determined on the basis of budget adoption,
taxing authority, fundin? and appointment of the respective governing board. All potential component units
have been considered for possible inclusion in the reporting entity.

Discretely Presented Component Units
The companent unit columns in the government-wide financial statements include the financial data of the
County's component units. They are included because, if excluded, the County’s financial statements
would be mis!eadin?. They are reported in separate columns in the government-wide financial statements
to emphasize their legal separation from the County. The following component units are included in the
statements:
Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District - The Solid Waste Disposal District has a board of
nine members and was created under the authority of Wyoming Statute 18-11-101 on October 3,
1979. The District may levy up to three mills for the purpose of disposing of solid waste at several
landfills located throughout the County.

Fremont County Weed and Pest Control District - The Weed and Pest Control District has a
board of seven members and was created under the authority of Wyoming Statute 11-5-101 in
1972. The District can levy up te one mill for general operations in controliing noxious weeds and
pests and an additional one mill for the control of leafy spurge.

Fremont County Fair Board - The Fremont County Fair Board consists of seven members who
have oversight responsibility for the County Fair, which is held annually in Riverton, Wyoming.

Fremont County Library Board - The Fremont County Library Board consists of five members
wha have oversight responsibility for providing general library services at several locations
throughout the County,

Fremont County Museum Board - The Fremont County Museum Board consists of five members
who have oversight responsibility for several museums located throughout the County.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
A. REPORTING ENTITY {cont.)

Fremont County Recreation Board - The Fremant County Recreation Board consists of nine
members who have oversight responsibility for recreational activities throughout the County.

The County Commissioners appoint the board members for each of these entities. Each entity is also
financially dependent upon the approval of funding outlined in an annual budget submitted to the County
Commissioners.

Separate audited financial statements for the Solid Waste Disposal District for the year ended June 30,
2011, may be obtained at the District office. The other component units do not issue separate financial
statements.

Related Organizations

The County is responsible for appointing members to the boards of other organizations, but is not
accountable for these organizations. The following related organizations are not included in the reporting
entity;

o Historic Preservation Commission - seven member board, all of which are appointed by the
County Commissioners.

+» Planning Commission - five member board, all of which are appointed by the County
Commissioners.

« Wind River Visitors Council - ten member board, two of whom are appointed by the County
Commissioners.

Jointly Governed Organizations

Fremont County Association of Governments (FCAG) - This is arjoint powers board consisting of the
following municipalities: Fremant Countfy, Town of Pavillion, Town of Hudson, Town of Shoshoni, Town of
Dubois, City of Riverton and the City of Lander. The FCAG was created to plan, create, expand, finance
and aperate any or all of the projects set forth in Section 16-1-104 ¢, Wyoming Statutes, 1997 amended.
The FCAG Board consists of the six mayors of Fremont Counlg and one County Commissioner. The
"Mission" of the FCAG is "Cooperating to Enhance Quality Public Services.”

The County provides a substantial amount of support to the FCAG. The County provides as much as a
5?"}4; rrlm:act;?eon many grants. For the year ended June 30, 2011, the County paid $159,000 to or on behalf
of the . :

A copy of the audited financial statements of the FCAG is available for inspection at their office.
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management's discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an
analytical overview of the County’s financial activities in a narrative format. An analysis of the County’s
overall financial position and resuits of operations is included to assist users in assessing whether the
financial position has improved or deteriorated as a result of the year's activities.

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primag; government and its component units.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been remove from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise,
the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the
primary government is financially accountable.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont.)
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly i(?entiﬁable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenuss.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds. proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,

even though the latter are exciuded from the government-wide financial statements Maijor individual

governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

- MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT

PRESENTATION
Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and private-purpose trust funds
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measursment
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are coliectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
County considers revenues to be available if they are collected as of the end of the current fiscal period.
The remaining receivables have been classified as deferred revenues and will be recognized as revenue
in the period of the actual receipt. Expenditures generally are recorded when a fiabi ity is incurred, as
under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, other taxes, franchise fees, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are ail considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the County.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund. It accounts for ali financial

resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

28

HHHHUHHU_HNUIH_HH_UHHHH”HHUHIJMIJUHHUHHH



- o AR - el

rdcabblashe ;-

TSN R T NCPUPTa | V-SRI SARRRSE ¥ TR T S

i, 4. Rt o oo,

B Nt s~

Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont.)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION (cont.)

Detention Facility Trust Fund - The Detention Facility Trust Fund is a permanent fund that
accounts for resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not principal,
may be used for maintenance of the County’s detention facility.

Road Construction Special Revenue Fund - The Road Construction Special Revenue Fund
accounts for financial resources derived from tax revenues from the State of Wyoming for fuel taxes
required to be expended on County Roads.

The County reports the followiﬁ major proprietary fund:

Ambulance Services - The Ambulance Services Fund is an enterprise fund that accounts for the
fiscal activity of all of the County's ambulance services.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:
-

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds account for the praceeds of specific revenue
sources {other than for major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified
purposes.

Capital Project Funds - Capital Project Funds account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds).

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the
costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or (b) where the governing
body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or
other purposes. The County's enterprise funds include Ambulance Services (see above) and the
Revolving Loan Fund.

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or
services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the
governmental unit, or to other governmental units, on a cost reimbursement basis. For the County,
this includes dispatch services, equipment rental, unemployment insurance, employee group health
insurance services, and the investment pool.

Private-Purpose Trust Funds and Agency Funds - These funds account for assets which are held
by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
governments and/or other funds. These include the agency fund, the inmate trust agency fund and
the Section 125 plan trust fund. Private-purpose trust funds are accounted for in essentially the
same manner as proprietary funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature {assets equal Iiabiﬁties)
and do not involve measurement of results of operations.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT

PRESENTATION (cont.)

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reparting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent
that those standards do net conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB. Based on the accounting
and reporting standards set forth in GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the County
has opted to apply only the accounting and reporting proncuncements issued by the Financial Accounting
fStalgdalrds Board (FASB) on or before November 30, 1988 for business-type activities and enterprise
unds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
County's enterprise funds and of the County's internal service funds are charges to customers for sales
and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The County applies restricted rescurces when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available,

RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Interfund Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of tending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end
of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e. the current portion of interfund
loans) or "advances toffrom other funds” (i.e. the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other
outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Advances between
funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in
applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not
expendable avaifable financial resources. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
activities alnd business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
“internal balances.”

INVESTMENTS

The County follows GASB Statement No. 31 (GASB 31). GASB 31 requires most investments to be
reported at their fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on investments are included in the statements of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for governmental fund types and in the statement
of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets for proprietary fund types.

INVENTORY

Materials used by the Road and Bridge department and materials and supplies used in the Ambulance
Services Fund are carried at cost as inventory and are charged to expense when consumed. Office
supplies are reported as an expenditure or expense in the period purchased.

Inventory in the discretely presented component unit - Weed and Pest Control District is held for both
consumption and resale and is carried at cost or estimated cost.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

G. ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in governmental funds. Encumbrances
outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances since they do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities.

H. RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain proceeds of a County capital facilities tax, as well as certain resources set aside for bonded debt
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the government-wide financial statements and
governmental funds financial statements_balance sheets because their use is limited by applicable debt
covenants and/or laws and regulations. The restricted assets are used o report resources set aside to:
(1) provide a reserve for debt service, and (2) provide a reserve for endowment.

. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capitalization and Valuation

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting systems) are reported in the
applicable governmentat or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements.  Infrastructure assets with initial costs that equal or exceed $25,000 and useful lives greater
than five years are capitalized. Expenditures for buildings and improvements having a useful life greater
than five years and a value greater than $10,000 are capitalized. Expenditures for other capital items
having a useful life greater than one year and a value greater than $1,000 are also capitalized. Certain
component units utilize lower capitalization thresholds. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated
fair market value at the date of donation. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are
capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of business-type
activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Depreciation Method and Useful Lives
Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, is
depreciated using the straight-line or 150% declining balance methods over the following estimated

useful lives:
Infrastructure 3-50 years
Buildings and improvements 10-90 years
Equipment 3-15 years
Vehicles 3-15 years
Office furniture 5-10 years
Computer software 5-10 years
Library collections 5 years

Capitalization of Museum Collections

Fremont County has three museums - the Pioneer Museum, the Riverton Museum, and the Dubois
Museum. The collections held in these museums include prehistoric and historic artifacts illustrating the
40,000+ years of human experience in central and western W oming. The collections include an
ethnographic collection and pioneer objects. The emﬁhasis of the collections begins with the 1860s
South Pass gold rush through the Waorld War Il era. The collections include cabins, vehicles, ranching,
mining and oil field equipment, household goods, weapons, business and store tools and equipment,
clothing, books, photographs and more.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.}

CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)

Capitalization of Museum Collections (cont.)

Beyond the display of artifacts, the Riverton Museum has a substantial research library that includes old
newspapers, collections of ariginal business documents, published books about local, county, state and
regional history, and a subject file that inciudes clippings, brochures, and other documents on a wide
range of local history topics.

The Dubois Museum houses archaeology exhibits about the Mountain Shoshone Indians, a replica of a
wild sheep trap, and a series of ecomurais. The center also houses rocks and fossils fram the area and
seven historical outbuildings.

The County has not capitalized the museum collections due to the subjectivity in valuation of the items
included. Also, the cost to the County to obtain the value of the items in the collections would be
prohibitive. These collections, if capitalized, would be recorded in the Museum Board component unit.

ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS

Receivables have been reported net of the allowance for uncoliectible accounts. The allowance is
estimated based on prior experience. The allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows:

Primary Government

General Fund $ 52,000
Enterprise Funds 214,115
Total Primary Government $ 266115
Component Units
Solid Waste Disposal District $ 17,000
Weed and Pest Control District 11,000
Fair Board 2,000
Library Board 7,000
Museum Board 2,000
Recreation Board 1.000
Total Component Units $ 40000
Total Reporting Entity $_. 306115
COMPENSATED ABSENCES

County policy permits employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned, but unused vacation and
sick leave. These benefits are payable to employees upon separation from service. All leave pay is
accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A fiability for
these amounts is reported. The computed liability is in compliance with GASB Statement No. 16,
Accaunting for Compensated Absences

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The County considers cash and cash equivalents to consist of all cash, either on hand or in banks,
including time depaosits and any highly fiquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months
or less. This definition of cash and cash equivalents is used in the statement of cash flows for proprietary
fund types.

LIABILITIES

Liabilities shown on the fund financial statements are those which will become due and payable within
one year after the financial statement date. On the government-wide financial statemnents, liabilities that
become due and payable within one year after the financial statement date are included in current
liabilities, while liabilities that become due and payable after that time are shown as noncurrent liabilities.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont.)

N. NET ASSETS.

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets are comprised
of the various net earnings from operating income, nonoperating revenues and expenses, and
capital contributions. Net assets are classified in the following components.

Invested in capita! assets, net of related debt — This component of net assets consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of
any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets.

Restricted net assets — This component of net assets consists of net assets subject to
constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legisiation.

Unrestricted net assets — This component of net assets consists of net assets that do not meet
the definition of “invested in capital assets, net of related debt” or “restricted net assets.”

0. FUND BALANCE

Beginning with fiscal year 2010, the County implemented GASB Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.” This Statement provides more clearly defined fund
balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government's fund
balances more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending
constraints:

» Nonspendable fund balance—amounts that are not in nonspendable form (such as inventory) or are
required to be maintained intact.

» Restricted fund balance—amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers {such as
Igran}ors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling
egislation.

« Committed fund balance—amounts constrained to specific purposes by the County itself enacted by
resolution of the Board of County Commissioners. Committed fund balance cannet be used for any other
purpose unless the commitment expires as set forth in the resolution, or a new Board resolution amends
the commitment.

e Assigned fund balance—amounts the County intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent can be
expressed by the County Commissioners or by an official or body to which the County Commissioners
delegates the authority.

. Unassi?ned fund balance—amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive amounts are
reported only in the general fund.

The County utilizes restricted fund balances first followed by committed resources, and then assigned
resources. Beginning fund balances for the County's governmental funds have been restated to reflect
the above classifications.

County Commissioners establish (and modify ar rescind) fund balance commitments by passage of a
resolution. This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund balance
commitment is further indicated in the budget document as a designation or commitment of the fund
(such as for special incentives). Assigned fund balance is established by the County Commissioners
through adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for specific purpose (such as the purchase of
fixed assets, construction, debt service, or for ather purposes).
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

P.

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Quasi-external transacticns are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. Transactions that
constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly
applicable to another fund, are recerded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as
reductions of expendituresfexpenses in the fund that is reimbursed. Alf other interfund transactions,
except quasi-externa! transactions and reimbursements, are reported as transfers.

ESTIMATES

The accounting policies of Fremont County, Wyomin? conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governments. Preparation of financial
statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and related disciosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The most significant accounting estimates are as follows:

1} Infrastructure with an estimated net value of $56,487,691 for the primary government and $778,478
for the component units was recorded as of July 1, 2002,

2) The liability for closure and postclosure care costs remained at $6,000,000 during the fiscal year. See
Note 12 for additional information.

3) Depreciation expense was estimated to be $4,165,325 for governmental activities for the year. See
Note 6 for additiona! information.

4) The allowance far uncollectible accounts total for the reporting entity is $306,115. See Note 1,
number J for additional information.

NOTE 2 - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data refiected in the financial statements:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)
7)

Prior to May 15, the County Clerk submits to the County Commissioners a proposed operating budget for
the fiscal year commencing that July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the
means of financing them for the upcoming year, along with estimates for the current year and actual data
for the two preceding years. The County Charter requires that the budget be submitted in summary form.
In addition, more detailed line item budgets are included for administrative control. The legal level of
statutory control for the detailed budget is at the department/function level.

Public hearings are conducted between the second and the third Monday in July to obtain taxpayer
comments.

Within 24 hours fellowing the public hearing, the budget is legally adopted through passage of a
resolution.

The County can, after public notice and hearing, transfer budgeted amounts between departments within
any fund.

Budgets for the governmental and proprietary fund types are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP), except that encumbrances are included as expenditures, The
general fund exgenditure classifications for GAAP and budgetary purposes differ due to classification of
expenditures. Budgeted amounts are the final authorized amounts as revised during the year. The
original budget for the fiscal year has been amended.

All appropriations, except for capital project funds, lapse at the end of each fiscal year.
The financial statement Budgetary Comparison Statement discloses the following budget
overexpenditure in the Emergency Management of $1,973 and in the Statutory Medical of $239,354,
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 3 -

NOTE 4 -

PROPERTY TAXES

All property taxes are levied at the County level on October 1. Provided the payments are timely, the tax can
be paid in two equal installments on November 10 and May 10 or tax may be paid in full on December 3.
Any taxes on real property that have not been received by the due date are put before the general public for a
tax deed assignment sale in August following three publicly advertised notices of the date of this sale. Taxes
that are not received at this assignment sale will cause the respective property to be assigned to the County.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments in treasury represent depasits and investments controlled by the County Treasurer.
Although the deposits and investments are pooled into various accounts at different institutions, each fund's
share of the deposits and investments are accounted for. Negative cash and investments in treasury figures
represent barrowings from the pool. Cash flows sufficient to reimburse the poo! for the temporary borrowing
are anticipated.

Other cash represents deposits and investments not controlled by the County Treasurer but rather by another
elected official or a bonded treasurer of a component unit.

Investment income shown in the financial statements is comprised of interest earnings and realized and
unrealized gains and losses.

Composition of the cash and investment accounts in the financial statements is as follows:

Cash and
Investments in
Primary Government and Treasury - Other Cash Total
Fiduciary Funds
Cash on hand $ 116,796 $ 45854 $ 121,650
Bank deposits 3,231,975 603,864 3,835,839
Investments 31,998,335 0 31,998 335

Total Cash and Investments $ 35,347,106 $ 608718 $ 35,955,824

Cash and
Investments in
Component Units Treasury Other Cash Total
Cash on hand $ 0 $ 88,1056 3 88,105
Bank deposits 285,867 2,381,827 2,667,394
Investments 0 1,082 699 1,982 689

Tota! Cash and Investments $ 285567 $4,452631 $ 4738198

Bank Deposits - At year end, the carrying amount of the primary government's bank deposits was
$3,835,839 and the bank balance was $4,839,929. Of the bank balance, $285,717 was covered by federal
depository insurance and $4,554,212 was covered by collateral held in safekeeping by a third party trust. At
year end, the carrying amount of the component unifs’ bank deposits was $2,667,794 the bank balance was
$2,895,883. Of the bank balance, $1,129,976 was covered by federal depository insurance; $1,765,907 was
covered by collateral held in safekeeping by a third party trust.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 4 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS {(cont.)
investments

Credit Risk - Statutes authorize the County to invest in various instruments of the federal government and its
agencies, savings certificates of saving and loan associations, bank certificates of deposit and investment
pools and repurchase agreements that purchase allowable investments.

The County (primary government), in accordance with its internal investment policy, has elected to invest
cash in excess of immediate needs in U.S. Government Securities, money market bank accounts,
repurchase agreements and external investment pools.

The component units do not have formal investment policies, but invest in accordance with state statutes. As
of June 30, 2011, the component units have elected to invest in bank certificates of deposit, money market
bank accounts and externa! investment pools.

The WyoStar local government investment pool and the repurchase agreement are not rated. All other
investments held by the primary government are rated AAA.

Interest Rate Risk — As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates,
the County’s investment policy limits average lives of instruments to the following;

Average Life Maximum Investment
More than gne year 75%
More than five years 25%

As of June 30, 2011, the County had the following investments and average maturities:

Average Maturity In Years

Primary Government,
Component Units and Fiduciary Funds

Less Than One - Five More Than
Investment Type Fair Value One Year Years Five Years
U.S. Agency
Obligations $22,772,598 $ 1,211,414 $14,738,734 $ 6,822,450
State Treasurer's
Paool 8,173,745 7,247,259 1,026,486 0
Certificates of
Deposit 26,687 26,587 0 0
Investment Pool 50,107 50,107 0 0
Total Investments $32,023.037 $ 8535367 $16,665,220 $ 6,822,450

The component units are not included in the schedule above. Those entities invest only in money market
accounts, bank certificates of deposit, the State Treasurer's investment pool and the State Library investment
pool.

As of June 30, 2011, the County had invested in the Wyoming State Treasurer's Asset Reserve (WyoStar},
an investment vehicle established to allow local government entities to pool surplus funds. The State
Treasurer administers and enforces all State statutes governing the WyoStar. WyoStar operates similarly to
a money market fund and each share is egual in value to $1.00. WyoStar may invest in any securities
allowed by statute.

36

M MELUUUNLEMLNU uN M M Uuu UM MNMUUY UM MU MU u



Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 4 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (cont.)
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Concentrations Risk - The County has a po\icr that directs the Treasurer to diversify assets held in cash and
pooled investments to minimize the risk of loss resulting from over-concentration of assets in a specific
maturity, a specific issuer, or a specific class of securities. With exception of U.S. Treasury securities, bank
certificates of deposits and authorized pools where there are no specific limits, no more than 50% of the
County's total investment portfolio will be invested in a single type of security. County investments with 2 5%
or greater concentration with a specific issuer are listed as follows:

Percent of
investment ssuer Fair Value  Investment Portfolio
Federal National Mortgage Association $ 8,634,335 26.963%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Association 5,242 324 16.370%
Government National Mortgage Association 3,947,123 12.326%
Federal Home Loan Bank 2,070,917 6.467%

A summary of cash transactions in the Agency fund for the year ended June 30, 2011 is as follows:

Collections pending distribution $ 68,135,802
Distribution of coliections (68,562,041}
Net change 35 (426,239)
Total cash - June 30, 2010 5817,795
Total cash - June 30, 2011 $ 6391556
Reconciliation to balance sheet:
Cash and investments in treasury $ 4,851,025
QOther ¢ash 540,531
$ 53910506

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2011 is as follows:

Due From Due To
Primary Government Fund Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund $ 23178 3 1,740
Road Construction Special Revenue Fund 1,442 0
Other Governmental Funds 33 1,442
Fiduciary Funds 1,707 23178
Total Primary Government $ 26360 $ 26,360

The $1,707 due to the inmate Trust Agency Fund from the General Fund is for the overpa ment of
accumulated profit on sales of items to detention center inmates. The $23,178 due to the General Fund from
the Inmate Trust Agency Fund is to pay the Sheriff Commissary account and the Sheriff Medical and
Miscellaneous Reimbursement accounts,

37




Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements
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NOTE § - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (cont.)

Due to/from primary government and component units consist of the following;

Due From Pue To
Primary Component
Government Units
Agency Fund $ 0 $ 408,097
Compenent Units
Solid Waste Disposal District 168,799 0
Woeed and Pest Control District 104,012 0
Fair Board 28,164 0
Library Board 97,312 0
Recreation Board 9810 0
Total Due To/From $ 408,097 $ 408,097
Interfund transfers consist of the following:
Transfer from
Transfer to
General Fund ' 3 304,349 $ 0
Internal Service Funds 0 0
Capital Projects Road Funds 0 115,642
Other Governmental Funds 0 188,707
Fiductary Fund 1,546 0
General Fund 0 1,546
Road Construction Special Revenue Fund 335,411 0
Other Governmental Funds 0 335,411
Detention Facility Permanent Trust Fund 48,321 0
General Fund 4] 48 321
Other Governmental Funds 817,400 0
General Fund 0 685,273
Internal Service Fund 0 1,460
Other Governmental Funds 0 130,667
Totals $ 1,507,027 $_ 1507027

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the
fund that statute or budget requires to expend them.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental Activities

Nendeprectable Capital Assets
Land
Constructicn in process
Total Nondepreciable
Capital Assets

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings and improvemants
Equipment
Wehicles
Office furniture
Computer software
Infrastructure

Total Depreciable Capital
Assets

Less Accumulated
Dapreciation
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Office furniture
Computer software
Infrastructure
Total Accumulated
Depreciation

Total Depreciable Capital
Agsets, Net

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net

Business-type Activitles

Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Land

Total Nondepraciable
Capital Assets

Depreciable Capital Assats
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Office furniture
Computer software

Total Depraciable Capital
Assets

Balance Balance
Jure 30, Transfers Transfers June 30,
2010 Additions Deletions In Out 2011
$ 1,497 437 3 0D 3 o % 0 5 0 § 1,497,437
142,981 1,167,210 0 4] 545 1,309,646
1,640,418 1,167,210 0 0 545 2,807.083
22,395,166 78,525 0 0 5717726 16,756,965
11,577,300 788,621 427,469 0 255,022 11,683,430
3,457,749 174,827 157,628 0 0 3,474 848
763,400 3,469 0 4] 482,087 284 812
1,201,776 122 668 110,743 0 3,985 1,209,706
125,672,380 555,476 142,000 545 4] 126,086,401
165,067 771 1,724 686 838,040 545 6,458,800 159,496 162
7,873,216 580,647 0 0 396,283 8,057,580
5,487 634 1,021,987 317,648 0 g9,830 6,082,143
1,986,417 299,698 149,328 b} 4] 2,136,787
215,258 64,881 0 0 93,048 186,191
800,327 149,327 110,743 0 1,355 837,566
45,901,364 2,048,782 85,315 0 0 47 664,831
62,264 216 4165322 663,034 0 £01.416 65.175.088
102,803,555 (2,440,636} 175,008 545 5,867,384 94,321,074
§ 104443973  $ (1, 273426) 5 175006 § 845 $ 35,867,929 § 97,128,157
§ 15,000 3 0 3 0 ) a § Q 3 15,000
15,000 0 [ 0 0 15,000
2,012,443 1,843 0 0 0 2,014,286
578,523 4,786 11,607 0 0 571,702
1,248,455 164,172 107,500 0 0 1,305,127
37,318 0 0 0 0 37,318
31.620 0 21,338 0 0 10,282
3,908,359 170,801 140,445 0 0 3,938.715
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Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Office furniture
Computer software
Total Accumulated
Depreciation

Total Depreciable Capital
Assets, Net

Business-type Activities
Capital Assets, Net

Component Units

Solid Waste Disposal District

Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Nondepreciable
Capital Assets

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Computer Software
Office furniture
Infrastructure

Total Depreciable
Capital Assets

Less Accumulated Depraciation
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Computer Software
Office furniture
Infrastructure

Total Accumulated
Depreciation

Total Deprectable Capital
Assets, Net

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net

Balance Balance
June 30, Transfers Transfers Juns 30,
2010 Additions Deletions In Out 20114
258,034 67,208 0 0 0 325,242
383,680 67,659 11,607 0 0 439,742
794,523 108,685 105,000 0 0 798 208
6,881 4,101 0 0 0 10,882
31,620 0 21,338 0 D 10,282
1,474 748 247,653 137 845 0 0 1,584,456
2,433,611 {76.852) 2,500 0 0 2,354,258
§..2448611 §__ (76.852) § 2500 Q $ 0 & __2,368.259
Balance Balance
June 30, Transfers Transfers June 30,
2010 Additions Deletions In Out 2011
$ 180,856 5 0 $ 0 0 3 a $ 180,856
47,1584 292 338 0 0 0 339,523
228,040 282 339 0 ] 0 520378
3,795,845 0 0 0 0 3,795,849
3,586,545 516,008 573474 0 0 3529079
1,043,633 0 138,240 0 0 905,393
26,343 0 0 0 0 26,343
9,441 b} 0 0 0 9,441
1,144 885 0 0 0 0 1,144 885
9,606,695 516,008 711.714 0 4] 9410880
666,366 105,327 0 0 0 771,713
1,871,873 248 692 469 388 0 0 1,751177
777,901 64,791 138,240 0 v} 704 452
3,075 5,269 0 0 o 8,344
6,892 338 D a 0 7.230
258,128 23,260 0 0 0 281,386
3,684 253 447 877 607 628 0 0 3,524 302
5922443 65,331 104.088 0 0 5,886,688
$.6,150483  § 360670  § 104,086 0 $ 0 § 6407067
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2011

NOTE 6- CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)

Component Units

Weed and Pest Control District
Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total Depreciable Capital
Assets, Net

Weed and Pest District
Capital Assets, Net

Falr Board

Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Tota! Depreciable Capital
Assets, Net

Fair Board
Capital Assets, Net

Library Board
Nendepreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total Depreciable Capital
Assets, Net

Library
Capital Assets, Net

Museum Board
Nondepreciable Capital Assets

Depreciable Capital Assets
Less Accumuiated Depreciation

Total Depreciable Capital
Assets, Net

Museum Board
Capital Assets, Net

Balance Balance
Jure 30, Transfers Transfers June 30,
2010 Additions Deletions In Out 2011

] 88 004 $ o § 0 $ 1] $ § 88,004
1,741,375 50,704 59,071 o 1,733,008
1,129,441 148 787 59,071 0 1,219,157

611,934 {98,083) 0 0 513,851
§_690038 5 _ (98083 E_ o 8 0 8 $ 601,855
5 382 400 § 0 L 1 3 0 $ $ 392,400
2,959,104 376,674 17,185 0 3,318,583
1,490,108 119,831 15,421 0 1,684 518
1,468,956 256,843 1,764 ¢] 1,724,075
£ 1,861,396 S 266843 & 1.764 3 0 § 0 £ 2116475
$ 109,700 § 117725 $ 0 3 Q $ $ 227,425
7.067,360 80,837 51,121 5,867,383 12,873,459
4.010.735 286,115 49,298 0 4,247 552
3,056.625 {196,278) 1.823 5,867,383 8725907
8 3,166.325 £ 30172 § 1823 $ 5,867,383 3 § 8953332
$ 227,750 3 0 3 0 $ 9] $ b3 227.750
3,466,326 9,083 1,308 0 3,474 100
362,001 133,874 o970 0 495 005
3,104,325 {124.881) 339 0 2,879,095
$ 3332075 § (124801) § .. 330 $ 0 3 $ 3206845
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)

Depreciation _
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/pragrams of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities

General Government $ 151,391
Public Safety 524 372
Roads and Bridges 2,114,524
Cuiture and Recreation 287,676
Health and Welfare 89,151
Economic Development 2,744
Support Services 50,507
Total depreciation governmental activities 3,220,365
Capital assets held by the County’s internal service funds
are charged to the various functions based on usage 944 960
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities §4.1 2

Business-type Activities
Ambulance Services $ 247653

NOTE 7 - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of the changes in general long-term debt of the County for the year ended June

30, 2011:
Primary Government
Balance Balance
June 30, June 30, Due Within
2010 Additions Reductions 2011 One Year
Goveramental Activities
Compensated absences $ 945,000 $ 999,900 $ 962,000 $ 982,900 $ 982,900
Obligations under capital lease 51,437 0 46,437 5,000 5000
Notes payable 16,573 0 1,200 15,373 1,232
Business-type Activities
Compensated absences 55,000 38,200 43,100 50,100 40,100

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long term liabilities for them
are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. As of June 30, 2011, $34,800 in
compensated absences and $5,000 in capital leases are included in the above amounts. Also, for the
governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund.

Component Units

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2010 Additions Reductions June 30, 2011 One Year
Closure and postclosure care
Solid Waste Disposal District $ 6,000,000 $ 0 5 0 $ 6,000,000 $ 0
Compensated absences
Solid Waste Disposal District 161,731 189,087 179,515 171,303 171,303
Weed and Pest Control District 68,500 56,500 62,000 63,000 63,000
Fair Board 7,100 13,100 8,200 14,000 7,000
Library Board 104,400 123,600 120,100 107,900 107,800
Museum Beard 22700 29,100 26,500 25,300 25,300
$ 364431 $ 411387 $ 394315 $ 381,503 $ 374.503
Obligations under capital lease
Fair Board $ 15,000 $ 0 $ 5,000 $ 10,000 $ 5,000
Museum Board 1.148 0 1,148 0 0
Solid Waste Disposal District 307,823 266 657 183,409 391,071 51,927

Article 16, Section 5 of the Wyoming Constitution limits the amount of debt the County may create. For the
year ended June 30, 2011, the debt limit was $15.29 million.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 8 -

NOTE 9 -

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

The Coungl contributes to the Wyoming Retirement System (WRS) pension plan, a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Wyoming Retirement System. WRS provides
retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The Wyoming Retirement
Board, after approval of the Wyoming State Legislature, may amend contribution requirements to WRS.
WRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and supplementary
information for WRS. That report may be obtained by writing to Wyoming Retirement Board, First Floor East
- Herschler Building, 112 West 25" Street, Cheyenne, WY 82002.

The plan statutorily requires 11.25% of the participant's salary to be contributed to the plan, paid by the
participant and the emfioyer in a manner as determined by the employer. Effective September 1, 2010 this
rate increased to 14.12%. Total County contributions to WRS for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and
2009 were $1,530,495, $1,391,025, $1,328,072 respectively.

In May 1989, the Contribution for law enforcement personnel was increased an additional 3.2%. Qualifying
personnel make these contributions through payroll deduction.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASE

AS LESSEE

The County has entered into leases for facilities and equipment which provide for specified minimum rental
payments.  To comply with state statutes, ali leases contain a non-appropriations clause which allows the
lessee to cancel the lease in the event that resources are not available for future appropriation. The
remaining terms of the leases range from approximately one to five years. Leases which transfer
substantially alf the benefits and risks incident to the ownership of property have been capitalized. The future
minimum rental commitments as of June 30, 2011 for continuing capital leases are as follows:

Internal Service Component
Year Ended June 30, Funds Units

2012 $ 5,000 64,684

2013 0 112,901

2014 0 107,902

2015 0 48,218

2016 0 106,357

Totat minimum lease payments $ 5,000 $ 440,062
Less: Amounts representing interest (O (38,991)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 5000 $ 401,071
Cost of leased property $ 40,085 $ 373,357
Accumulated depreciation (19,142) (35,251}
§ 20,923 3338106

Property under capital lease consists of equipment and facilities. The cost of the leased propenty is included
in the same fund/component unit as the capital lease obligation.

The capital lease obligations payable in future years have been reflected as both proceeds from capital lease
and as expenditure in the appropriate fund/component unit in the initial year of the lease.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 10 -LEASE RECEIVABLE

AS LESSOR

The County entered into a direct financing lease with the Old Timers Rodeo Association of Fremont County
for a building to be used as an indoor rodec arena. The City of Lander and the County entered into a joint
powers agreement and secured a loan in Fremont County's name for $175,000 from the Farm Loan Board to
construct the building. Title to the building is in the County's name and will revert to the Old Timers upon the
payment of all fifteen annual lease installments of $6,000 fo the County.

During the year ended June 30, 2004, this lease was refinanced. The County forgave $69,253 of principal
and $17,300 of accrued interest. Of the total amount forgiven, $9,118 was recorded as bad debt expense in
fiscal 2004, while an allowance had been recorded for the other $77,435 in the prior year. The interest rate on
the lease was lowered from 7.0% to 4.34%. Annual lease installments were lowered from $13,675 to $6,000.

The components of the net investment in this direct financing lease are as follows:

Net minimum lease payments receivable $48,000
Less: unearned income ( 8,165)
Net investment in financing leases $30,835

A schedule of total net minimum lease payments receivable by year is as follows:

June 30,
2012 $ 6,000
2013 6,000
2014 6,000
2015 6,000
2018 6,000
2017-2019 18.000

NOTE 11 -COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

Var?ous claims and lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of operations are pending against the County.
While the ultimate effect of such litigation cannot be ascertained at this time, in the opinion of the County
Attorney, the liabilities which may arise from such action would not result in losses which wouid materially
affect the financial position of the County or the results of operations.

Construction commitments _
The County has active construction projects as of June 30, 2011. At year end, the County's commitments
with contractors are as follows:

Remaining
Projects Spent-to-date Commitment
Road Construction:
Burma Road Phase 1 $ 1,051,445 $ 4,528,340
Railroad Street Improvements 94,758 2,269
Mortimore Lane Bridge 30,845 198,005
Baldwin Creek Road 7,176 9,689
Other Construction:
Lander Carnegie Remodel 15,790 27,210
Library Energy Retrofit 1,280 29,720
Other Contracts:;
Dubois Roads Survey 27623 67,138

The commitments are financed as follows: road construction by the Road Construction Special Revenue
Fund, the Lander Library by the Library Excess Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund, and other contracts by the
General Fund. a4
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 11 -

NOTE 12-

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES {(cont.)

Grants

The County receives significant financial assistance from federal and state governmental agencies in the
form of grants, which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. The
disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and
conditions specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the County's independent auditors
and other governmental auditors, Therefore, to the extent that the County has not complied with the terms
and conditions governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required, and the collectability of
any related receivables at June 30, 2011 may be impaired. Based on prior experience, the County's
management believes such amounts, if any, would be immaterial,

Insurance Coverage

The County is a member of the Local Government Self Insurance Pool as authorized by State statute 1-42-
101. Coverages of this pool include general liability, automobile liability, and public officials’ errors and
omissions. Participation by the County is voluntary. Participants may be terminated for failure to pay the
required assessments. Ag‘oint powers board administers the pool. It is the board's duty to provide legal
services for the defense of ciaims, procure insurance and professional services as required, establish and
collect assessments on participating entities as necessary to operate the pool, and establish deductibles.

Seftled claims have not exceeded the insurance coverage in the past three years.

The County carries property insurance to absorb any losses related to theft or damage to County property.
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the Commissioners appropriated $182,000 for liability premiums
and casualty losses and incurred $180,311 of actual expenditures for premiums and losses to uninsured

property.
No significant reduction in the County's insurance coverage has occurred.

The County offers a self-funded death benefit to employees as a fringe benefit. The maximum death benefit
is $10,000 per full-time employee and $5,000 per part-time employee.

Group Health Insurance

The County has established a self-insured health benefit plan fund (internal service fund). The purpose of
this fund is to pay medical, dental and vision claims of the County and other qualifying entities employees and
their covered dependents and minimize the total cost of medical benefits. Medical claims exceeding
$125,000 per individual are covered by a stop-loss policy through a private insurance carrier. The County
has engaged the services of a plan administrator who, for an administration fee, which approximated
$167,000 for the year ended June 30, 2011, serviced the claims and stop-loss premiums paid. Stop-loss
reimbursements received approximated $392,000, $329,000, $301,000 $219,000, and, $44,000 for each of
the past five years, respectively.

The health insurance fund is funded by monthly contribution payments from the participating groups.

The County estimates claim loss liabilities using historical experience plus any known significant losses.
Following is a summary of claim loss liability:

Claim liability at beginning of year $ 386,000
((Z;:aims incgr&ed during year 4,672 397

aims paid during year 4,575,397)
Claim liability at end of year m

DETENTION FACILITY TRUST PERMANENT FUND

The Detenticn Facility Trust Permanent Fund was created when the voters of Fremont County approved a
1% capital facility tax in a special election held on May 5, 1898. The proposition approved by the voters
stated in part, "...The remaining $2,000,000 of collections shall constitute the corpus (principal) of the
endowment fund. Any excess collections and unused construction funds shall be added to the corpus
(principal} of the endowment fund. The earnings from the endowment fund will be used for the facility's
utiliies, maintenance, and replacement of building components and equipment.” Net appreciation on
investments amounting to $1,406,587 is available for authorization for expenditure by the board of County
Commissioners. This amount is included in unrestricted net assets. State law does not address the ability to
spend the net appreciation. The amount to be spent is established through the County's normal budget
process.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 13- CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COST -
SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT

State and federal laws and regulations require the Solid Waste Disposal District (the District) to place a final
cover on its landfills when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the sites for 30 years after closure. After five years, the District can petition the State for official
closure status. Closure and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfills
stop accepting waste. The estimated liability incurred to date is included as a liability of the District (a
component unit) in the government-wide statement of net assets. Closure and postclosure care costs are
recognized when incurred. The liability is adjusted each year to reflect costs incurred and changes in
estimated remaining capacity. The District estimates closure and postclosure care costs based on original
landfill capacity and the estimated capacity used to date.

The landfill closure and postclosure care liability reported is based on the following estimated costs and

capacities:
Estimated Total Closure and Percentage of Total
June 30, Postclosure Care Costs Capacity Filled Liability
2011 $ 11,000,000 =556% $ 6,000,000

These costs are based on what it would presently cost to perfarm all closure and postclosure care. Actual
costs may be more or less due to inflation, changes in technology or changes in regulations.

Ihe Distrizcé 1e1$timates the remaining site life and capacity used of each of the County landfilis as follows as of
une 30, :

Life Capacity Filled
Lander - Phases 2 -5 12.0 years 50%
Riverton - Sand Draw 26.0 years 42%
Shoshoeni 62.0 years 90%
Dubois 0.8 years 100%

State and federal laws require the District to provide financial assurance that the closure and post closure
care requirements will be met. The District participates in a guarantee program administered by the State of
Wyoming. Participation in this program satisfies the financial assurance requirements. The effective date of
compliance with these requirements was April 9, 1997. The annual contribution amounted to $16,046 and
3400, for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

During the Kear ended June 30, 2011, the District operated the Lander, Sand Draw, Shoshoni and Dubois
landfills without permits. These sites are required to be re-permitted by the Wyoming Depariment of
Environmental Quality (WDEQ) every four years. The permitting process was under way for all four sites
during the fiscal year and is discussed further in Note 15, Subsequent Events.

The District has closed six sites. The State of Wyoming has assumed control over three small fandfills within
Fremont County (Atlantic City, Jeffrey City and Lysite), releasing the District of post closure responsibilities
and decreasing the amount of liability recognized by the District.

There are outstanding issues on the remaining three closed sites (Hudson, Pavillion and Missouri Valiey).
Annual inspections have revealed problems that must be addressed before the District can petition the State
for final closure. The State requires five consecutive annual inspections without incident before the petition
for release can be accepted.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 14- PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Fremont County's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2010 reflected an accrual of property taxes
receivable that did not meet the guidance of the “Codification of Governmental and Financial Reporting
Standards” which state that “governments should recognize assets from imposed nonexchange revenue
transactions in the period when an enforceable legal claim to the assets arise...” Management has
determined that the enforceable legal claim does not arise until September 1% each year, which changes the
recognition of $3,497,000 of taxes receivable and $4,878,000 of deferred revenues as of June 30, 2010. The
component units’ taxes receivable and deferred revenues were also restated in the amount of $2,078,000.
The restatement of the June 30, 2010 taxes receivable and deferred revenue had no effect on the prior net
asset balance, The June 30, 2010 restatement also includes a reclassification of $1.381,000 from deferred
revenue to net assets — unrestricted on the Statement of Net Assets, due to an error on the reconciliation from
the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-wide Financial Statements, and an adjustment to
the beginning fund balance of the General Fund to restate the prior balance for $147 627 of grant revenue
earned in the prior year. The restatement of the $1,381,000 of deferred revenue and the recognition of the
$147,627 of grant revenue increased the June 30, 2010 net assets from $133,019,968 to $134,548 595,

;I'he effects of the restatements on the financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010 are as
ollows:

Taxes Receivable As Previcusly
Reported As Restated
Statement of Net Assets -~ Government-Wide;

Taxes receivable $4352424 $ 855424
Deferred revenue (4,878,000 -
Net assets — unrestricted (deficit) 15,216,631 16,597,631

As Previously
Reported As Restated

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds — General Fund:
Taxes receivable $ 4,206,474 $ 799,474
Deferred revenue (3,594,000) {97.,000)

As Previously
Reported As Restated
Statement of Net Assets -
Solid Waste District — Component Unit:

Taxes receivable $1240476 $ 22,000
Intergovernmental revenues 10,957 51,433
Deferred revenue (1,178,000) -

As Previously
Reported As Restated
Balance Sheet — Solid Waste District — Compenent Unit;
Taxes receivable $1,168,000 % 22,000
Deferred revenue {1,178,000) {32,000}

As Previously
Reported As Restated
Combining Balance Sheet — Non-Major Component Unit:
Weed and Pest Control District
Taxes receivable $ 745000 % 0
Deferred revenue (747,000) (2,000

As Previously
Reported As Restated

Combining Balance Sheet — Non-Major Component Unit:

Fair Board
Taxes receivable $ 158,000 3 7.000
Deferred revenue (159,000) (8,000)
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 14- PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (cont.)

As Previously

Reported As Restated
Combining Balance Sheet — Non-Major Component Unit;
Library Board
Taxes receivable $ 590,000 & 16,000
Deferred revenue (592,000) {18,000)

As Previously

Reported As Restated

Combining Balance Sheet — Non-Major Component Unit:
Museum Board
Taxes receivable

$ 290,000 3 4,000
Deferred revenue

(290,794) (4.794)

As Previously
_ Reported As Restated
Combining Balance Sheet — Non-Major Component Unit:

Recreation Board

Taxes receivable

$ 78000 % 2,000

Deferred revenue (78,000) (2,000)
Deferred Revenue As Previously
Reparted As Restated
Statement of Activities —~ Government-Wide:
Property taxes $9,244359  $ 10,625,359
Statement of Net Assets — Governmental Activities 133,019,968 134,400,968
Grant Revenue As Previously
Reported As Restated
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds — General Fund:
Revenues - Intergovernmental $(9,270,604) $ (9.418,231)
Fund Balance 14,739,368 14,886,995
Intergovernmental and grants receivable 120,454 268,121
Statement of Net Assets — Governmental Aclivities
as restated above 134,400,968 134,548,595

NOTE 15- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District

On August 23, 2011, the Dubois Landfill was issued a permit by the Wyoming Department of Environmental
Quality (WDEQ).

The District submitted a permit application by the deadiine for the Sand Draw Landfill. However, upon review,
the DEQ placed two conditions on the permit that the District objected to. The matter was appealed to the
Environmental Quality Council (EQC) and a hearing was held on November 16 and 17, 2011. The ruling
following the hearing was that one condition had fo be modified, which was acceptable to the District, and the
other condition had to be eliminated. Therefore, it is anticipated that once the EQC enters a final written order
on January 12, 2012, a permit will be issued.

On April 20, 2611, the District submitted a permit to the WDEQ for the Shoshoni Landfill. The permit was
deemed complete and technically adequate, the 60 day public notice period was completed, and the District is
now waiting for the final issuance of the permit from WDEQ.

On May 1, 2011, the Lander Landfill submitted a permit to the WDEQ. The permit was deemed compilete and
technically adequate, the 60 day public notice period was completed, and the District is now waiting for the
final issuance of the permit from WDEQ. No further litigation is anticipated with regards to the permits.

Lander Valley Medical Center Settlement

On January 3, 2012 Fremont County paid a negotiated settiement in the amount of $457,378 for mental
health invoiuntary hospitalizations claims. Those claims dated from May 2009 through December of 2011. An
estimated portion of these claims in the amount of $317,000 have been recorded as a General Fund's liability
for Statutory Medical expenditure for the fiscal yigr ended June 30, 2011.
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
SCHEDULE OF WYDMING STATE ASSISTANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balanca
Total Amount Amourit Avalatie
Amount Drawn as of  Drawn as of ta be
SOURCE/Grant Number Purpese Aporoved  June 30,2010 02011 Recaived
ATTORNEY GENERAL
none victim Services - Atlomeay 168 641 a B4.321 B4 320
nang Vichirn Services - Sherift 123290 ol 1,138 62,155
BUSINESS COUNCIL
nond Buwiness Ready Commurity Grard 1.500 000 1,202 012 1 500,000 o

CULTURAL TRUST FUND
138-11-8 Camege Libcary Perfermanca 40 G o 35,060 4,000
Space Projact Phase 2

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

nar Early Datection: Rapid Responsa 25700 o 25,000 To0
nEne Fasticide Dhsposal 1.500 0 1,560 1]
nore Grasshopper Abatement-2010 20060 20,000 20,000 o
nong Grasshapper Abatement-2071 43 500 a 43000 1}
nora West Nila \irus Management-2010 47.500 40000 &7.900 o
none West Nila Vinas Managemeni-2011 B7 400 0 87,8900 o
none Early Daltection Raprd Responss 25 000 25.000 a 1]
Mapping - 2010
nane Early Detection Rapud Rasponse 23,000 23,060 n}
Mappirg - 2011
DEPARTMENT OF EDUGATION
none Misii-grant-Juvenils Detanton Canter 6,000 v} 5,893 a
nors Emargency Management Services 4 500 a 4,500 v}
DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES
none Ghitd Suppon Enforcemant Agreemeant 12,158 a BE.073 5,079
nens Community Juverile Services Board 120 690 Q 22,718 7972
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
none Adult Drug Court 384,108 0 353,204 30,902
none Juvenila Drug Court 271 m 4] 252,750 18,951
GRONT Matemal and Child Health B7.243 [+ 58,240 1,003
DEPARTMENT OF REVENLE
none State Assisiance Ha NA 84,156 HA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
BROS CN10089 Morumare Lane Bridge Replacement 1273185 i} 49,209 1223978
IRP O 00 CN10084 Burma Road-Phaas 1 2.000,000 3540 184,420 1,815,570
STATE TREASURER
nona Veterans and Mative Amercan 214 816 1] "] 214918
exgemptian
CFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR
nora Shoshone Natonal Forest Plan 46,000 L) 46,000 Q
Revision Analysis
1923-DR-WY (FL-05) 2010 Fload-Trujilo Brigge 70187 o 70,187 Q
1823-DR-WY (FC-08) 2010 Flood-Emargency Response 4,451 a 4,481 0
1922-DR-WY (FC-07) 2010 Flood-Daer Vallay Dr. 12410 0 o] 12910
1523-DR-WY (FC-08) 2010 Flogd-MHarth Forike Road 3529 i) 3530 ]
1923-DR-wWY [FC-03 2010 Flpod-Phaasant Run T 423 Q 7423 Q
1522 DR-WY (F{-10) 2010 Flood-Beabes Road 4,478 0 4476 o
1923-DR-WY (FC-11) 2010 Flood-Deer Valley Bridge 1303 0 0 1,303
1823-DR-WY (FG-12) 2010 Flood-Emerg. Levee Restere 10.91% { bl 10918
1923-DR-WY (FC-13) 20110 Flosd-Appaloosa Brdge &e D 3 8018
1823-DR-WY (FC-14) 2010 Flood-Morth Fark Bridge 13,250 ] 2 13,250
OFFICE QF STATE LANDS AND INVESTHMENTS
MRG-080TE Fr Ambulance Bam 800 400 460,563 512203 a
MRG-05408 Fr Twa Ambulances 105,000 0 20,700 1]
MRG-09410 Fr Burrma Road Raconstruction Phasa 1 089,554 12,063 B&,522 023,032
MRG-03513 Fr Baldwin Creek Road Safety 245,500 o 4] 245 500
MRG-05127Fr Leachats Cantrol 175.000 32,162 32,182 142 838
MRG-07221Fr Sand Oraw Landfil Expansion 261 000 51,135 111.452 169,548
MR-08406F Vehicle Weigh Scales 540.000 497 550 497,550 o
MRG-08542Fr Recycling Equipment 198 487 0 82 823 108 664

Total State Assistance 310008442 32518918 _F5318523 8 5393531

C

R i ag int revenue in ihe Vicims of Crimas (Atlemey) spacial revanue fund.
Reoognm as lnterou\rarnmonw revenua in the Victims of Crimas (Sheriff) special revenue fund.
Raoogmzed as interoo\remmerrlal revenus In the Economic Cavelopment capital project fund

JET ] I reverua In iha Library capital project fumd
stgnlzsd as |rnnrgnvnmmnnh| revanua in the Wead and Pest Conlra! District component unit
Recognized as intergavemmental revenug (n the Youth Servicas special revanue fund
Recugnrzed as 1mergoverru'nemal revenus In the Ambulance snterprise fund
F as Imep i revenuer In tha County general fund,
Reoognlzed as intergovemmantal revenus in the Community Juvenile Services special revenue fund
Rac;nqmzed as hmrnovornmenw revenue in Aduit Drug Court spacial revenue fund.

d as 1+ i revenue In Juvenilke Drug Court special revenue hund.
f ized as Im i revenue in Bast Beginnings Grant spacial revanua fund
13 Raoognlzed as iniergovommsnu revanug in the Road Conrsinaction capital project fund
14 Recognized as imergovemmental revenuk in the County Geneval Fund and componant unils.
15 Recognized as intergovemmental revenus in Forest Plan Revision Analysis special revenue fund,
18 Recognized as imtergovernmental revanus n tha Solid Waste Disposal District component unit

ammqmmsmna

-
-y

s
[5]
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Recognized
For Yoar
Ended

30,2011

81.5M
58,5842

207 9B8

14,166

25.000
1.500
20000
4313
4238
T.a70
15176

4 721

5883
4 500

6078
B5.426

353,381
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES
AND TRANSFERS OUT BY OBJECT CLASSIFICATION
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2011

Other
Employee Property Purchased
Salaries Benefits Services Services
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
County Commissioners $ 162,320 $ 93942 $ 3,786 $ 60968
County Clerk - administration 464 866 257,011 43,197 22,904
County Clerk - elections 79,743 44,866 38,032 111,375
County Treasurer 366,578 167,001 1,998 11,763
County Assessor 478,299 229,415 12,408 45,964
County Coroner 144,451 49,115 5,861 91,091
Planning 187,073 85,529 10,315 3,758
Joint Powers Capital Projects 0 0 0 0
Total General Government Expenditures 1,883,330 926,879 113,595 347,823
PUBLIC SAFETY
Circuit Court - Lander 0 0 2,781 1,858
Circuit Court - Riverton 0 0 1,095 1,328
Clerk of District Court 227954 899,606 2,569 1,967
County Attorney 789,005 341,838 37,881 35,368
County Sheriff - Dispateh Center 0 0 0 0
County Sheriff - Jail Division 1,920,097 912,807 28,210 615,087
County Sheriff - Sheriff Division 1,922,469 927,845 156,469 69,530
District Court 29,891 11,249 1,931 140,092
Emergency Management 88,995 27,625 2,403 7,247
Flood - Emergency Management 2,300 500 0 1
Flood - Sheriff 925 194 0 0
Flood - Transportation 1,656 389 119,174 (2,158)
Flood - Vehicle Maintenance (895} {144) 0] 0
Frement County Fire Protection District 0 0 0 15,000
Public Defender 0 0 34,200 93,890
Search and Rescue 0 3,147 o 115,765
Youth Services 180,188 84772 1,510 4,431
Total Public Safety Expenditures 5,142,785 2,409,838 386,223 1,099,385
COUNTY ROADS AND BRIDGES
County Roads 930,028 480,218 296,902 230,333
Local Government Assistance g 0 G 0
Total Roads and Bridges Expenditures 930,028 480,218 296,902 230,333
SANITATION
Lecal Government Assistance 0 0 0 0
CULTURE AND RECREATION
Dubois Youth Activities Inc. a c 0 0
Fremont County Fair 0 0 0 o
Fremont County Library Q 8] 0 0
Total Culture and Recreation Expenditures 0 D 0 0
{cont'd)
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Supplies Function Transfers Budget
and Class Capital Debt to Other Class
Materials Other Totals Qutlay Service Funds Totals
$ 2248 0 323,265 $ 0 0 $ 0 $ 323,265
18,397 0 808,375 9,695 0 0 816,070
51522 0 323,538 0 0 0 323,538
52,050 0 589,390 2,375 0 0 601,765
21574 0 787,658 0 0 0 787,658
26,433 0 316,951 156 0 0 317,107
7.806 0 284,481 0 0 0 284 481
0 150,000 160,000 0 G 0 150,000
180,031 150,000 3,601,658 12,228 0 0 3,613,884
3,342 0 7,981 0 ¢ 0 7,981
1,720 0 4143 0 0 0 4143
15,659 0 347,755 3,468 0 0 351,223
17,639 0 1,221,731 1,081 0 25,920 1,248,712
0 539,464 639,464 ¢ 0 0 639,464
476,206 0 3,850,387 0 0 0 3,950,387
175,283 0 3,251,605 14,891 0 3,678 3,270,174
1,583 0 184,746 3,499 0 ¢ 188,245
19,201 0 125,471 3719 0 ¢ 129,180
{10,309) 0 (7,508) 0 0 0 (7,508)
0 0 1,119 0 0 0 1,119
(2,550) 0 116,521 o 0 ¢ 116,521
0 0 (839) 0 0 o (839)
0 0 15,000 0 0 ¢ 15,000
0 0 128,080 o 0 0 128,000
882 0 119,794 0 0 ¢ 119,794
2,409 4] 273,310 4 894 0 1.847 280,051
701,085 639,464 10,378,770 31,532 8] 31,445 10,441,747
743,677 c 2,681,158 527,168 43218 24,604 3,276,148
0 143,000 143,000 ¢ 0 G 143,000
743,677 143,000 2,824.158 527,168 43,218 24,604 3,419,148
0 50,000 50,000 0 0 0 50,000
0 1,000 1,000 0 0 G 1,000
0 346,621 346,621 o 0 ¢ 346,621
o 6,844 6,844 0 0 ¢ 6,844
0 354,465 354,465 0 0 8] 354,465
{cont'd)
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES
AND TRANSFERS OUT BY OBJECT CLASSIFICATION
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
{continued}

Other
Employee Proparty Purchased
Salaries Benefits Services Services
HEALTH AND WELFARE
Child Development Services 0 0 0 0
Family Viclence 0 0 0 c
Foster Grandparent Program ¥ 0 0 v
Fremont Counseling o 0 0 0
Fremont Caounty Alcehot Crisis Center 0 0 0 0
Fremont County Good Samaritan 0 0 0 0
Fremont County WIC 54,363 22,254 0 5,11
Health Nurse 81,758 32,717 5705 150,370
indigent care 0 0 o 0
Injury Prevention Resources 0 0 0 0
Predatory animals 0 0 0 a
Senior Citizens - High Country o 0 0 0
Senior Citizens - Lander 0 0 Q G
Senior Citizens - Riverton 0 0 c 0
Senior Citizens - Shosheni 0 Q o 0
Soil conservation 0 G 0 0
Statutory medical 0 0 0 Q
Wyoming Senior Citizens 0 0 0 0
Total Heatth and Welfare Expenditures 138,121 54,971 5705 155,471
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Agriculture depariment 107,614 58,686 14,168 45 482
Riverton Regicnal Airport 0 0 0 0
Total Economic Development 107,614 58,686 14,166 45,462
SUPPORT SERVICES :
Advertising 0 0 0 30,589
Buildings maintenance 209,164 127,678 255121 12,586
Buildings maintenance - Jail 54,640 37,016 110,906 4290
Communications repair 0 ¢ 3,203 0
Computer services 120,709 50,124 153,438 4,743
Consulting and auditing fee 0 0 48,000 0
Insurance bonds ¢ 0 0 180,311
Maintenance (equip. and vehicles}) 298,774 128,652 39,047 9012
Service agreements 0 0 51,126 0
Telephone 0 0 0 7,509
Transfer to Court Assisted Supervised Treatmer 0] G o ¢
Transfer to Capital Proj. Road 0 0 0 0
Transfer to Juvenile Treatment Court 0 0 0 0
Vital statistics 0 0 318 0
Total Support Services Expenditures 683,287 343,470 662,157 248,040
Total Expenditures $ 8883,165 3 4,274,062 $ 1,478,748 $ 2,127,524
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Supplies Function Transfers Budget
and Class Capital Debt to Other Class
Materiais Other Totals Qutlay Service Funds Totals
0 24,000 24,000 0 0 o 24,000
o 5,000 5,000 0 0 #] 5,000
0 3,000 3,000 0 0 0 3,000
0 10,000 10,000 8] 0 o] 10,000
0 ©5,000 95,000 0 0 0 95,000
0 5,000 5,000 0 c 0 5,000
5,450 0 87,168 0 0 0 87,168
33,334 0 303,884 5,837 0 49,264 369,085
0 257,486 257 486 0 0 0 257,486
0 30,000 30,000 8] 0 o] 30,000
0 3,000 3,000 0 o 0 3,000
0 7,000 7,000 0 0 0 7,000
0 23,000 23,000 0 0 0 23,000
0 26,000 26,000 0 0 0 26,000
0 4,000 4,000 0 0 0 4,000
¢ 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 10,000
0 222,354 222 354 o 0 c 222,354
0 1,000 1,000 0 0 0 1,000
38,784 725,840 1,116,892 5937 o] 49,264 1,172,003
10,570 0 236,458 0 0 C 236,498
4] 50,000 50,000 0 0 8] 50,000
10,570 50,000 286,498 0 0 0 286,458
0 0 30,589 0 0 0 30,589
59,602 0 664,151 2,984 v} 0 667,135
61,755 0 268,607 13,036 0 0 281,643
0 0 3,203 0 0 0 3,203
34,748 0 363,762 23,697 0] 0 387,459
4] 0 49,000 0 0 0] 49,000
] ) 180,311 0 0 0 180,311
235,286 0 710,771 2,856 0 0 713,627
0 0 51,126 0 0 0 51,126
0 o 7,509 0 o) 0 7,509
0 0 0 0 0 47 6553 47,553
0 0 0 0 0 91,038 91,038
0 0 0 0 v} 60,445 60,445
0 0 315 0 0 o 316
391,391 0 2,329,345 42,573 0 199,036 2,570,954
$ 2,065,518 $ 2,112,769 $ 20,841,788 $ 619436 $ 43,218 $ 304,349 $21,908,789
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Varlance -
Prior Currant Total to Project Positive
Years Year Date Budget {Negative)
LANDER LIBRARY {Completed) |
REVENLUES:
Taxes S  5800,000 3 0 $ 5,900,000 $ 6525500 $ (625,500)
Investrnent Income 176,313 0 176,313 115,000 61,313
Total revenues 6,076 313 0 6,076,313 5,640,500 (564,187)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay 8,453,799 124,001 6,582,800 6,640,500 57,700
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures {382 486) {124,001) {506,487) 0 {506,487)
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN
Transfer from Library Excess Sales Tax SRF 382,168 118.043 500,211 1} 500,211
Net change in fund balance {318} {5,958) {6,276} 0 {6,276)
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30 3 {318} $ {6,276)
LIBRARY CARNEGIE REMODEL |
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 8 0 8 14,166 3 14,166 $ 40,000 3 {25,834)
Investment tncome 0 (148) {143 0 (149
Total revenues 0 14,017 14017 40,000 (25,983)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay 10,121 29,955 40,076 71121 31,045
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures (10,121) {15,938) (26,058) {31,121) 5,062
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN
Transfer from Library Excess Sales Tax SRF 10,121 12,624 22,745 31,121 (8,376}
Net change in fund balance 0 {3,314) {3.314) 0 (3,314}
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30 5 4] $ {3,314}
60
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REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenue
Other revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay

Nat change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30

REVENUES:
Intergavernmental

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capitat outlay

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay

FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Excess of revenues over (under)

expenditures

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN

Transfer from Road Construction Special

Revenue Fund

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
Varlance -
Prier Current Total to Project Positive
Years Year Date Budget (Negative}
| ECONQMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND {
$ 1.202012 $ 297988 $ 1,500,000 $ 1,850,627 (359,627)
137,601 227,958 355,559 211,000 154,555
1,339,613 525,946 1,865,559 2.070,627 (205,068}
1,339613 525,946 1,865,558 2,070,627 205,068
0 0 0 0 o
$ 0 $ 0
| ROADS FUND - Mortimore Bridge Repair ]
S 0 3 0 $ 1] 3 70,350 $ (70.350)
0 0 4] 70,350 {70,350}
0 0 ] 70,350 70,350
0 0 0 0 1]
3 0 3 0
l ROADS FUND - Baldwin Greek Road |
5 0 § 7,178 H 7178 $ 1] g 7.176
0 7175 7176 0 7.176
1] 7.176 7,176 400,000 382,824
Y 0 0 {400,000) 400,000
0 0 0 400,000 {400.000)
4] 0 0 400,000 {400,000)
5 0 3 0
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REVENUES:

Intergovernmental revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30

REVENUES:

intergovemmental revenue

Traial revanuasz

EXPENDITURES:
Capital cutlay

Excess of revenues over (under)

expendituras

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Varlance -
Frior Current Total to Project Positive
Yaars Year Date Budget {Negative)

| ROADS FUND - Mortimore Bridge Replacement

1

$ 0 $ 30,845 $ 30,845 $ 1,406,990 $ (1,376,145)
] 30,845 30,845 1.406,900 (1,376,145)
0 30,845 30,845 1,406,950 1,376,145
4 0 0 0 0
] 0 $ 0

I ROADS FUND - Burma Road Phase 1

3 83,550 § 721,669 $ B0521% 3 2989554

3 {2,184,335)

Tsansfer from Road Construction Special

Revenue Fund

Net ¢hangs in fund balance

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30

REVENUES:
Qther revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay

Excess of revenues over (under)

expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfer from General Fund

Transfer from Road Construction Special

Revenue Fund

Total Other Financing Sources
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30

83,550 721,669 805,219 2,985 554 {2.184.335)
141,611 1,042,535 1,184,146 6,901,854 5,712,708
{58,061) (320,866) (378,927) (3.912,300) 3,533,373

53,061 320,866 a7g 927 3,912,300 {3,533,373)

0 0 0 0 0
3 0 $ 0
I ROADS FUND - Country Acres Road |
% 0 5 0 3 0 3 343,621 $  (343621)
0 ] 0 343,621 {343,621)
825 32,349 33174 379,734 346,560
(825} (32,349) (33.174) (36.113) 2,929
454 17,803 18,257 19.875 (1.618)
T 14,546 14,917 16,238 {1,321)
825 32,349 33174 36,113 {2,939}
0 0 0 0 0
3 0 3 0
62
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance -
Prior Current Total to Project Poslitive
Years Year Date Budgest {Negative)
| ROADS FUND - Rallroad Street Improvements 1
REVENUES:
Other revenue $ 185 3 0 5 185 $ 0 165
Total revenues 165 0 165 0 165
EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay 545 97,839 08,384 261,000 182,616
Excess of revenues over {under)
expenditures {380) (97,839) {98,219) {261,000) 162,781
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfer from General Fund 380 97 835 8,219 261,000 {162,781}
Net change in fund balance Q 0 (] 0 1]
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30 3 0 3 0
e
1 BUILDING ENERGY EFFICIENT RETROFIT - County |
REVENUES:
tntergevernmental $ 0 S 0 $ V] b 354,328 $ (354,328)
Other revenue 0 0 0 29,150 {29,150}
Total revenues 0 0 0 383478 (383,478}
EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay Q g 0 0 1]
Excess of revenues over (under}
expendifures 0 o] 0 383,478 {383,478)
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES:
Transfes from General Fund Q 0 Q 38,341 {38,341}
Net change in fund balance 0 8] 0 421,819 {421,819
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30 5 0 $ 0
| BUILDING ENERGY EFFICIENT RETROFIT - Library |
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental S 1] k] 2,180 3 2,180 5 275597 $ (273417
Other revenue 0 0 0 10,612 {10,612)
Total revenues 0 2,180 2,180 286,209 (284,029)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay 0 2,180 2,180 326,058 323,878
Excess of revenues aver {undar)
expenditures ¥] 0 0 (39,849) 39,849
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfer from General Fund 4 0 1} 39,849 (39,84%6)
Net change in fund balance 0 0 0 0 0
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30 $ 0 3 0
63
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYCMING
COMEINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Capital
Dispatch Revolving
Center Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from service users § 768,184 $ 959330
Confributions and insurance reimbursaments 0 0
Cash paid for goods and services {39,652) 0
Cash paid to employees {619,338} 0
Benefits paid D 0
Investment income 0 0
Allocation of investment eamings 0 0
Net cash provided by (used for) cperating activities 108,174 969,330
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of capital assets . o (808,173)
Disposition of capital assets 0 11,102
Interest paid on debt {203) 0
Capitat grants excluding cash match 185,970 356,552
Principal paid on capital lease obligations 1] 5,000
Transfer from other funds 1,460 0
Repayment of loan from generai fund (120,000} Y
Net cash provided by {used for} capital and related
financing activities 67,227 {443,519)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
investmant income 5,868 7,966
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 182,269 523,777
CASH AND INVESTMENTS IN TREASURY :
JULY 1 83,452 32,089
JUNE 30 $ 265721 $ 555866
RECONCILIATION TO BALANCE SHEET:
Cash and investments in treasury $ 265721 $ 555866
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Qperating income (loss} 3 (27.580) % 166,104
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used for) operaling activities-
Depreciation 136,751 791,433
Change in assets - {increase) decrease:
Accounts receivable 9,900 {701)
Inventory and prepaid expenses 488 0
Note and lease receivables (program loans) 0 4,094
Operating acrued interest ] (1,600)
Change in liabilities - increase (decrease):
Operating accounts payable and accrued expenses {18,555) 0
Comgensated absences 8,200 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES $ 109,174 $ 959,330
66 (continued)
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Health Total
Fuel Benefit Investment  Internal Service
Distribution Plan Pool Funds
$ 721,564 3 0 3 ¢ $2,449 058
0 4 800,768 g 4,800,768
(697 648) {303,584) {17,469) {1,058,353)
6,771) 0 Q (626,109}
1] (4,766,628} o {4,766,628)
0 0 473 432 473,432
0 4] (574,747) {574,747)
17,145 (269,444} (118,784) 697 421
(1.423) 0 0 (807,5986)
0 ] 0 11,102
0 0 0 {203)
0 0 0 542,522
] 0 0 {5,000)
0 0 0 1,460
0 0 4] (120,000}
{1,423) 0 0 {377,715)
808 15,351 0 29,993
16,530 (254,093} (118,784) 349,699
34,718 855,418 2,008,843 3,014,520
$ 51,248 b 801,325 $ 1,890,059 $ 3,364,219
$ 51,248 b 601,325 $ 1,890,059 $ 3,364,219
$ (83588 § (280886) $ (103,788) § (254,748)
16,248 0 528 944,960
1,380 {41,434) Q {30,855)
{9.515) 0 0 {9,047)
0 (4] ¢ 4,094
0 o {16,000) {17.600)
17,620 52,876 474 52,415
0 0 o) 8,200
$ 17,145 $ (269444 5 (118784) & 697,421

67




FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDILE
ALL FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS

{Except General Fund and Capital Project Funds)

FCR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Actual Varlance with
Amounts Final Budget -
{Budgetary Positive
Original Finat Basis) {Negative)
CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS)
Special Revenue Funds:
State Homsland Security 3 466,078 3 679,425 $ 198,568 $ 480,857
Forest Plan Revision Analysis a 45,000 46,000 0
Forast Reserva 677,000 726,447 598,719 27,728
E.B. Memorial Grant 81,282 81,702 3,200 78,502
Youth Servicas Grant 99 169 106,163 74116 31,047
Community Service Block Grant Q 25,000 12,724 12,276
Hospice QOperations and Maintenance 100,000 100,000 100,000 ]
Best Beginnings Grant 61,556 293,749 253,773 38,976
Public Health Emargency Freparedness 134,345 230,338 116,109 114,228
Public Health 107,229 107,229 80,428 26,801
Road Construction 3,805,678 3,805,678 2,592,649 1,213,029
Juvenile Justice Program 18,467 18,467 18,467 0
Juvenile Justice and Delinquancy Prevention Q 43,608 2,578 41,028
Community Juvenile Services Q 120,690 65,426 55,264
Juvenile Drug Court 348,903 345,903 315,941 32,962
Veteran's War Memorial 0 43534 43,533 1
Adult Drug Court 4R2 895 474,045 435,841 37,205
Victim of Crimes 12,777 112,777 107,491 5,286
Victim of Crimes (Sheriff) 61,646 51,646 §9,681 1,965
Energy Efficiency and Conservation 62,011 82,011 428 61,583
Abandoned Vehicle Program 23,000 23,000 18,049 4,951
Sheriff's Enforcement 6317 44,238 35,865 8,373
Library Excess Sales Tax 931,701 931,701 630,667 301,034
ES11 Program 320,900 320,900 143,081 177,839
Debt Service Funds
Epencer Home-sites Sewer 1,166 1,616 1.615 1
Capifat Proiect Funds {see papes 60-63}
Enterprise Funds:
Ambulance Services 1,617,156 1,617,156 1,568,565 48 590
Internal Service Funds:
Dispatch Center 881,306 881,308 785,654 95,452
Capital Revolving Fund 890,000 890,000 791,433 98,567
Fuel Distribution 737,200 737,200 728,772 8,428
Health Benefit Plan 4,801,000 5,111,000 5,123,088 {12,088}
Investment Pool 1,049,000 1,049,000 593,218 455,782
Fiduciary Fund:
Expendable Section 125 Trust 371,000 415,000 409,802 5,198
Permanent Fund:
Detention Facility Trust 142 800 142 800 48,321 94 478
Compenent Units:
Solid Waste Disposal District 6,493,285 5,493,285 5,891,797 601,488
Weed and Pest Control District 3,444,782 3,444,782 2,934,407 510,375
Fair Board 1,435,695 1,435,685 1,184,128 251,587
Library Board - General Fund 1,774,194 1,805,308 1,724,624 80,584
Museum Board General Fund 706,441 706,441 588,119 118,322
Museumn Board Special Revenue Funds 158,617 158,411 102,404 57,007
Recreation Board 453,957 453 987 260,619 193,368
Total charges to appropriations § 32,858,583 $ 34,150,237 $ 28,791,081 § 5,355,156
63
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
BALANCE SHEET

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT - COMPONENT UNIT

GENERAL FUND
JUNE 30, 2011

ASSETS

Cash
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):
Taxes
Intergovernmental and grants
Accounts
Accrued interest
Other assets
Due from primary government

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balance
Commitied for cash reserves
Committed to contractual obligations
Unassigned

Totai fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

Fund balance of Solid Waste Disposal District

Amounts reported for the Solid Waste Disposal District
in the statement of net assets are different because:

1) Capital assets are not financial resources, and therefore,
are not reported in the fund financial statements.

2) Other long-term assets are not available to pay
current-period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred
in the fund financial statements.

3) Long-term liabilities, including compensated
absences, closure and postclosure care costs and
capital leases, are not due in the current period and

therefore are not reported in the fund financial statements.

Net assets of Solid Waste Disposal District (page 13)
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$

1,579,317

41,000
41,459
230,018
6,000
31,000
168,799

3

2,097,594

240,658
47,000

287,658

300,000
536,086
973,850

1,809,936

2,097,594

1,808,936

6,407,067

85,049

(6,562,374)

$

1,739,678




FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3¢, 2011

REVENUES
Taxes, primarily property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment income
Miscelianeous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Sanitation
Wages
Employee benefits
Bale station operation and maintenance
Engineering fees
Equipment repairs
Financial assurance
Insurance
Leases
Long-term plan
Office expenses and travel
Bad debt expense
Operation and maintenance
Professional fees
Recycling
Scale Houses
Site improvement and maintenance
Transfer slations
Utilities
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures
Excess of expenditures over revenues
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Praceeds from capital lease
Sale of capital assets
Total from other financing sources
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE - JULY 1

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30

70

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT - COMPONENT UNIT

$ 2,583,145
281,831
2,476,462
697

2,684

5,354,819

1,557,838
754,159
262,143

1,043,536

83,391
16,048
25,387
72,820
64,761
51,048
4,811
395,172
28,5632
163,668
6,371
143,072
2,758
203,174
808,347

183,409
21,354

5,891,797

(536,978)

266,657
107,000

373,657
(163,321)
1,973,257

$ 1,809,936
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT - COMPONENT UNIT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Amounts reported for the Solid Waste Disposal District in the
statement of activities (pages 14-15) are different because:

Net change in fund balance (page 68) $ (183,321)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation

($447 677) exceeded capital outlay ($808,347} in the current
period. 360,670

The net effect of various transactions involving capital assets (i.e.
sales and trade-ins) is to decrease net assets. These transactions
are not reflected in governmental funds. {104,086}

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the fund
financial statements. 12,573

Expenses reported in the statement of activities that do not use

current financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the

funds. Following are net decreases (increases) in:
Compensated absences. {(9,572)
Landfill closure costs 0

The issuance of long-term debt (including capital leases) provides

current financial resources to governmental funds, while the

repayment of long-term debt consumes the current financial

resources of governmental funds. However, this has no effect on

net assets. This amount is the net effect of these differences in

the treatment of long-term debt. (83,248)

Change in net assets of Solid Waste Disposal District ( page 15) $ 13,016
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

WEED AND
PEST CONTROL FAIR LIBRARY MUSEUM RECREATION
DISTRICT BOARD BOARD BOARD BOARD TOTALS
REVENLUES:

Taxes, primarily property § 1,835,157 $ 351,451 $ 1,307,058 $ 624251 $ 165,426 $ 4,087,343
Intergovermmental 0 338,457 506,844 7,235 ¢l 852,576
Charges for servicas 1,343,850 270,839 34,181 5934 4] 1,654,804
Investrnent income 5815 -] 5,832 6,436 1,733 19,822
Other revenue D 5,617 40705 47,157 0 94 479

Total revenues 2.984,822 987,410 1,894 620 691,013 171,158 6,709,024
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Cuilture and recreation 0 701,829 1,637,933 680,243 179,528 3,198,593
Sanitation 2,883,703 g a Q 1] 2,883,703
Capital outlay 50,704 376,574 83,561 9,083 V] 520,022
Debt service:
Principal o] 5,000 0 1,148 o] 6,148
Interest 0 "] 0 48 0 49
Total expenditures 2,934,407 1,083,503 1,721,664 690,523 179,528 6,609,515
Excess of revenues over (under) expendiiuras 50,415 {116,083} 173,066 490 (8,389) 99,509
OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES:

Sale of capital assets 8,000 B50 0 0 0 8 850
Net change in fund balance 58415 (115,243) 173,068 450 {8,369} 108,359
FUND BALANCES - JULY 1 1,348,029 812,018 821,178 297,544 347,947 3,426,716
FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30 $  1,406444 $ 488,775 $ 954244 $ 298034 $ 339,578 5 3,535075
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
RECONCILIATION OF THE COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

NONMAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

WEED AND
PEST CONTROL FAIR
DISTRICT BOARD

LIBRARY
BOARD

MUSEUM
BOARD

RECREATION
BOARD

TOTALS

Amounts reported for nonmajor component units

in the statement of activities (page 73) are

different because:

Net change in fund balance {paga 75} 3 58,415 8 (115,243)
Governmental funds report capital outlays as
expenditures. Hawever, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is aliocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the excess of
capital outlay over {under) depreciation during
the current period. {98,084) 256,843
The completed Lander Library addition was

transferred from the primary government ta the

Library component unit. This transfer is not

reported in the govammeantal funds. 0 0

The net effect of various transactions tnvolving

capital gssets (i.e. sales, trada-ins and

donations) is to decrease net assets. These

transactions are not reflected in governmental

funds. 920 (1.764)
Governmental funds report loan procesds as

other financing sources and debt principal

paymeins as other financial uses. However,

only the interest payment is included in

expenses on the statement of activities, This is

the amount by which loan procaeds exceed

principal payments. 0 5,000

Revenues reported in the statement of activities
that do not provide current financial resaurces
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 33,071 {4.381}
Expenses reported in the statement of activities

that do not use currant financial rescurces are

net reported as expenditures in the funds.

Following are net decreases (increases) in

compenssted absences. 5,500 (6,900)

3 173,068

(78,552)

5,867,383

{1,824)

4715

(3,500)

3 480

(124,881}

(339)

1,148

9,186

{2,600}

§ (8,369)

a

82,316

3 108,358

{44,664}

5,867,383

(3.007)

6,148

124,907

{7,500

Change: in net assets of nonmajor component

units { page 73) $ (178) & 133,555

§ 5961288

$  {117.008)

§ 73,847

§ 6061608
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ASSETS

Other cash

FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
BALANCE SHEET
WEED AND PEST CONTROL DISTRICT - COMPONENT UNIT
GENERAL FUND
JUNE 30, 2011

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)

Taxes
Accounts

Accrued interest

Inventory

Due from primary government - Agency Fund

$ 1,073,103

26,000
203,415
4,000
299,775
104,012

Total assets

$ 1,710,305

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balance

Nonspendable - inventory

Unassigned

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

77

$ 273,861
30,000

303,861

299,775
1,106,669

1,406,444

$ 1,710,305




FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WEED AND PEST CONTROL DISTRICT - COMPONENT UNIT
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance-
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:

Taxes, primarily property $ 1,657,625 $ 1,635,157 $ (22,468)
Intergovernmental 0
Charges for services 1,448,732 1,343,850 {105,882)
Investment income 4,000 5,815 1.815

Total revenues 3,111,357 2,984,822 (126,535)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Sanitation:
Administrative 457,000 439,008 17,992
Operations 2,401,200 1,980,776 420,424
Indirect costs 486,082 463,49 22,183
Capital outtay 100,500 50,704 49,796
Total expenditures 3,444,782 2,834,407 510,375
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures (333,425) 50,415 383,840
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES:

Sale of capital assets o . 8,000 8,000
Net change in fund balance (333,425) 58,415 391,840
FUND BALANCE - JULY 1 1,348,029 1,348,029 0
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30 $ 1,014,604 $ 1,406,444 $ 391,840

78
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
BALANCE SHEET
FAIR BOARD - COMPONENT UNIT
GENERAL FUND
JUNE 30, 2011

ASSETS

Other cash

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):
Taxes
Accrued interest

Prepaid expenses

Due from primary government

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

ﬂ
|
|
|
|
i
|
%
|

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balance:
Nonspendable - prepaid expenses
Committed to contractual obligations
Unassigned

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

79

566,330

6,000
1,000
11,185
28,164

612,689

108,914
7,000

115,914

11,195
100,625
384,955

496,775

612,689




FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FAIR BOARD - COMPONENT UNIT
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance-
Positive
Budget Actual {MNegative)
REVENUES:
Taxes, primarily property 5 3IN47 3 351,451 $ (19,606)
Intergovernmental 335418 338,497 3,079
Charges for services 165,825 270,839 105,014
Investment income 25 & {19}
Oiher revenue 5,000 6617 1,617
Total revenues 877,415 967,410 89,995
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Culture and recreation:
Salaries and wages 213,550 208,536 4614
Employee benefits 81,284 74,859 6,425
Utilities 45953 41,175 4,778
Property services 21,000 16,022 4978
Purchased services 315,085 210,379 104,686
Supplies and materials 146,150 85,372 BO,778
Other expenditures 45525 65,086 {19,561}
Capital autiay 360,418 376,674 (16,256}
Debt service - principal 5,000 5,000 0
Total expenditures 1,233,045 1,083,503 150,442
Excess of revenues over
{under) expenditures {356,530} {116,093) 240,437
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Sale of capital assets 0 850 850
Net change in fund balance {356,530) {115,243) 241,287
FUND BALANCE - JULY 1 558,280 612,018 53,738
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30 $ 201,750 $ 496,775 $ 295,025

Budgefary reserve 260,000
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING

BALANCE SHEET
LIBRARY BOARD - COMPONENT UNIT
GENERAL FUND
JUNE 30, 2011
ASSETS

Other cash $ 895475

Receivabies (net of allowance for uncollectibles):
Taxes . 21,000
Accounts 7,465
Accrued interest 4,000
Other assets 1,961
Due from primary government - agency fund 97,312
Total assets $ 1,027,213

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 7,969
Deferred revenue 25,000
Total liabilities 32,969
Fund balance:
Nonspendable - prepaid expenses 1,961
Committed to contractual obligations 3,070
Unassigned 889,213
Total fund balance 004,244
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 1,027,213
81




FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
LIBRARY BOARD - COMPONENT UNIT
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance-
Positive
Budget Actual {Neqative}
REVENUES:
Taxes, primarily property $ 1,202,229 $ 1,307,058 $ 104,829
Intergovernmental 528,344 506,844 (21,500}
Charges for services 28,000 34,181 6,181
Investment income 1,200 5,832 4632
Other revenue 24,270 40,705 16,435
Total revenues 1,784,043 1,884,620 110,577
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Culture and recreation:
Salaries 936,738 009,873 26,865
Employee benefits 469,839 443917 25922
Property services 168,394 135,328 33,066
Other services 56,552 56,853 {301)
Materials and supplies 105,770 92,022 13,748
Capital outlay 88,015 83,561 (15,546)
Total expenditures 1,805,308 1,721,554 83,754
Net change in fund balance {21,265) 173,066 194,331
FUND BALANCE - JULY 1 671,265 821,178 149,913
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30 $ 650,000 $ 994,244 $ 344,244
Budgetary Reserve $650,000
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
MUSEUM BOARD - COMPONENT UNIT
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Total
Special Capital Governmental
General Revenue Project Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments in treasury $ 187,285 $ 93926 $ 4,358 $ 285,567
Other cash 25 8.612 0 8,637
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):
Taxes 11,000 0 0 11,000
Accounts o 138 0 138
lnventory 0 34,173 0 34,173
Total assets $ 198,310 $ 136,849 $ 4,356 $ 339,515
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 20,878 $ 5,756 3 ¥] $ 26,634
Deferred revenue 11,000 3,847 0 14,847
Total liabilities 31,878 9,603 0 41,481
Fund balance:
Nonspendable - inventory 0 34,173 0 34,173
Committed for cubture and recreation 0 93,073 0 93,073
Committed to building improvements 0 0 4,356 4,356
Committed for publications 3,407 0 0 3,407
Unassigned 163,025 o 0 163,025
Total fund balance . 166,432 127,246 4,356 298,034
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 198,310 $ 136849 $ 4,356 $ 339,515
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REVENUES

Taxes, primarily property
Intergovernmentz|
Charges for services
Investment income
Other revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Culture and recreation:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Supplies
Public utilities
Other services
Other expenditures
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
interest

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance
FUND BALANCE - JULY 1

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30 3

FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
MUSEUM BOARD - COMPONENT UNIT
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Total
Special Capital Governmentat
General Revenue Project Funds
% 624,251 $ 0 3 o] $ 524,251
7,235 0 G 7,235
162 5772 0 5,934
4,178 2,210 48 6,436
0 47,157 0 47,157
635,826 55,138 48 551,013
330,434 19,968 0 350,402
119,059 1.737 0 120,796
21,816 48,431 0 70,247
42,450 0 0 42,450
55,802 29,326 0 85,128
9,847 1,373 0 11,220
7.514 1,569 0 9,083
1,148 0 0 1,148
49 0 0 49
588,119 102,404 0 690,523
47,707 (47,265) 48 490
118,725 174,511 4308 297,544
156,432 $§ 127,246 3 4,356 $ 298,034
B4
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MUSEUM BOARD - COMPONENT UNIT
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Varlance-
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes, primarily property $ 621,094 g 624,251 $ 3,157
Intergovemimental 2,000 7,235 5,235
Charges for services a 162 162
Investment income 1,000 4,178 3,178
Total revenues 624,094 635,826 11,732
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Culture and recreation:
Salanies 335,266 330,434 4,832
Employee benefits 128,900 119,058 9,841
Supplies 20,000 21,816 (1,818}
Public utilities 50,494 42 450 8,044
Other services 64,631 55,802 8,829
Other expenditures 11,500 9,847 1,653
Capital outlay 4,000 7,514 {3,514)
Debt Service
Principal 1,300 1,148 152
Interest 350 49 301
Total expenditures 616,441 588,119 28,322
Net change in fund balance 7653 47,707 40,054
FUND BALANCE - JULY 1 82,347 118,725 36,378
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30 $ 90,000 $ 166,432 $ 76,432
Budgetary Reserve 3 90,000
87




FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MUSEUM BOARD - COMPONENT UNIT
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - DUBOIS MUSEUM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance-
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmenial $ 3,600 5 0 L (3,600)
Charges for services 3,500 2,094 (1,4086)
investment income : 500 208 (292)
Other revenue 28,900 20,219 (8,681)
Total revenues 36,500 22,521 {13,879)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Culture and recreation:
Supplies 16,000 19,489 (3,489)
Public utilities 2,000 0 2,000
Other services 7,794 8,706 (912)
Other expenditures 5,000 479 4,521
Debt Service:
Principal 500 0 500
Total expenditures 31,294 28,674 2,620
Net change in fund balance 5,206 (6,153) (947)
FUND BALANCE - JULY 1 10,156 39,313 29,157
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30 $ 15,362 3 33,160 3 17,798
Budgetary Reserve $ 0
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MUSEUM BOARD - COMPONENT UNIT
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - PIONEER MUSEUM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance-
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Investment income 3 0 $ 1,054 $ 1,054
Other revenue 35,000 20,100 (14,900)
Total revenues 35,000 21,154 {13,846)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Culture and recreation:
Salaries 19,968 19,968 0
Employee benefits 1.617 1,737 (120)
Supplies 13,950 22,214 (8,264)
Other services 11,300 17,559 (6,259)
Other expenditures 1,600 894 106
Capital outlay 20,600 1,569 19,031
Total expenditures 68,435 63,941 4,494
Net change in fund balance (33,435) (42,787) (76,222)
FUND BALANCE - JULY 1 75,361 81,842 6,481
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30 $ 41,926 $ 39,055 $ (2,871)
Budgetary Reserve $ 39,282
89




FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MUSEUM BOARD - COMPONENT UNIT
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - RIVERTON MUSEUM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

ML LM ELEENENLULEN

Variance-
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Investment income 3 500 3 656 5 156
Cther revenue 4,500 6,685 2,185
Total revenues 5,000 7,341 2.341
EXPENDITURES:
Current;
Culture and recreation:

Supplies 5,500 6,049 (549)
Other services 150 0 1580
Cash reserve 5,00C 0 5,000
Capital outlay 5,000 0 5,000

Total expenditures 15,650 6,049 9,601
Net change in fund balance {10,650) 1,292 11,842
FUND BALANCE - JULY 1 32,153 37,412 5,259
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30 $ 21,503 $ 38,704 $ 17,201
Budgetary Reserve $ 5,000
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MUSEUM BOARD - COMPONENT UNIT

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - WIND RIVER MOUNTAINEER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES:
Charges for services
Investment income
QOther revenue

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Culture and recreation:
Supplies
Other services
Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE - JULY 1

FUND BAILANCE - JUNE 30

Budgetary Reserve

Variance-
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
$ 5,600 3 3,678 $ (1,822}
350 292 (58)
200 153 (47)
6,050 4,123 (1,927)
600 679 {79
4 150 3,061 1,089
4,750 3,740 1,010
1,300 383 (917)
15,078 15,944 866
$ 16,378 $ 16,327 $ (51)
3 0
o1




IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

MUSEUM BOARD - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES:
Investment Income

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Other Services
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Excass of revanues over {under) expenditures
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30

Dubols Museum Capital Projact

Variance -
Prior Currant Total to Project Positive
Years Year Date Budget {Nogative}
5 0 48 § 48 0 % 48
0 48 48 0 48
5,692 a 5,692 10,000 4,308
0 0 0 D 0
5,602 1] 5,602 10,000 4,308
(5,692} 48 (5.644) (10,000} {4,356)
10,000 0 10,000 10,000 Q
4,308 48 4,356 0 (4,358)
% 4,308 $ 4,356
92
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
BALANCE SHEET
RECREATION BOARD - COMPONENT UNIT
GENERAL FUND
JUNE 30, 2011

ASSETS

Other cash
Taxes receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):
Due from primary government

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Deferred revenue
Fund Balance;
Committed to contractual cbligations
Unassigned
Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

93

329,769
3,000
9,809

342,578

3.000

81,001
258,487

339,678

342,578




FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
RECREATION BOARD - COMPONENT UNIT
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance-
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes, primarily property $ 172,494 3 169,426 $ (3,068)
Investment income 1] 1,733 1,733
Total revenues 172,494 171,159 (1,339)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Culture and recreation:
Personal services 5,000 5,000 0
Contractual services 281,086 174,101 106,985
Office supplies 500 427 73
Total expenditures 286,588 179,528 107,058
Net change in fund balance {114,092) {8,369) 106,723
FUND BALANCE - JULY 1 281,493 347,847 66,454
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30 3 167,401 $ 339,578 $ 172,177
Budgetary reserve $ 167,401
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decoria - maichel - teague

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on
an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Fremont County, Wyoming
Lander, Wyoming

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, each major component unit, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Fremont County, Wyoming (“the County”), as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the
County’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon
dated January 20, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermnment
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
We have also audited the financial statements of the Fremont County Solid
Waste Disposal District, as described in our report on the County’s financial
statements. This report does not include the results of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that
are reported on separately by us.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
County’s internal control over financial reporting.
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies, or
material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies,
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider
to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs as Findings 11-1 through 11-4, in the aggregate, to be a material
weakness.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies described in
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as Findings 11-2
through 11-4 to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The County’'s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the
County’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of Fremont County,
Wyoming in a separate letter dated January 20, 2012.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management, the audit
committee, Board of County Commissioners, and federal awarding agencies and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

L, Mol g 5

DeCoria, Maichel & Teague, P.S.
Spokane, Washington

January 20, 2012
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Certified Public Accountants
Business Consultants
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decoria « maichel « teague

Report of Independent Auditor on Compliance with
Requirements That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each
Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance in
Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Fremont County, Wyoming
Lander, Wyoming

Compliance

We have audited Fremont County, Wyoming's (“the County”) compliance of with
the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management
and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the County’s major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2011. The County's major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs
is the responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the County’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the County’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reascnable basis for our opinion. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination on the County’s compliance with those
requirements.

In our opinion, Fremont County, Wyoming complied, in all material respects, with
the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2011. However the results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of
noncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be reported in

-accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 11-5.
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internal Control over Compliance

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we
considered the County’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal contro!
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
County's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
infernal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
However we identified a deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider
to be a significant deficiency as described in the accompanying schedule of findings as
item 11-5. A significant deficiency in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention from those
charged with governance.

The County's responses to the findings indentified in our audit are described in the

accompanying schedule of findings. We did not audit the County’s responses and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, audit
committee, Board of County Commissioners, the State of Wyoming, federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Ao, Moachl &g s A2,

DeCoria, Maichel & Teague, P.S.
Spokane, Washington

January 20, 2012
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal Grantor/Pags-Through Granter/Program Title CFDA Pass-Through
Number Number Expenditures
U.8. D of Agricuiture
Passed through Wyoming Dept. of Health - Division
of Health and Medical Services
-Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Tnfants 10.557 none 78,041
and Children (WIC)
Passed through Wyoming Stata Treasurers Ofiica
-Schools and Roads - Grants to Countles (Forest 10.666 nona 683,217
LS. rim f merce
Passed through Wyoming Office of Homeland Securily
-Public Safety Interopsrable Communications 11.555 O07-NTI-FRE-PS-PCST 2,185
U.S, Department of Interior
Passed through Wyoming State Treasurers COffice
-Taylor Grazing unknown none 33,157
U.S. Dapartment of Justice
Passed through Wyoming Department of Famlly Servicas
~Juvenlte Accountabliity Incentive Block Grant 16.523 JB-09-003 16,620
Passed through Volunteers of America Northern Rockies
-Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention 18.540 200B-JF-FX-K001 2,578
Passed through Wyoming Atterney General - Division of
Victim Services
-Victims of Crimes (Aftorney) 18.575 2008-VA-GX-0024 48,2085
-Victims Services {Sheriff) 16.575 2010-VA-GX-0064 16,295 65,590
-Victims Services {Sherlffy 16.588 2009-WF-AX-0015 17,490
Direct
-Bulletproof Vest Partnership 16.607 UNKNOWN 11,040
-F.C. Joint Spending !ssue 16.738 2007-DJ-BX-1360 3,187
U.5, Department of Labor
Passed through Wyoming Department of Workforee
-ARRA - Work Experience Tralnlng 17.258 none 6,202
-ARRA - Work Experience Training 17.259 none 8,768
-Work Experience Training 17.2589 185108 649 8,417
Us, b
Passed fhrough Wyoming Dept. of Transportation
-Trafflc Enforcemeant - 2040 20,600 10-PTOSF 5,206
-Selective Trafflc Enforcement 2011 20,600 402 6,544
-Baldwin Creek Road-500" 20600 HRRR 0.0 CN10086 8,404
-Seleciive Traffic Enfercement 2011 20.807 154AL 5,459
“Wireless Server Software 20.807 2011-154AL13 18,505 40,288
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Passed through Wyoming Dapartment of Environmental
-Emissions Compllant Bulldezer and Trackhoe 66.040 nona 325,459
U.8. Department of Energy
Passed through Wyomlng Business Council
-ARRA - Facility Energy Efficlent Grant-Library 81.041 84374 2,180 .
Diract
-ARRA - Energy Efficlency & Conservation Block Grant 81.128 DDE-RW0Q00203 428
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FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal GranteriPass-Through Grantor/Program Title CFDA Pass-Through
Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Dept. of Heajth & Human Services
Passed through Wyoming Dept. of Health

-Publlc Health Emergency Preparedness 09110 93.069 none 31,528

-Public Health Emergency Response HTN1 93.089 none 10,854

-Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 none 58,996

-Pubijc Health Emergency Response HiN1 93.069 none 8,032

-County Health Officer Supplement 93.069 none 10,000 120,410

Passed through Wyoming Dept. of Health - Community and
Family Health Divislon

-Matemal Child Health-TANF 10/11 93.558 nene 28,283

-Maternal Child Health-TANF 09/10 93.558 none 114,386 142,669
Passed through Wyoming Dept. of Famlly Services

-Child Support Cooperative Agreement 93.563 none 11,800
Passed through Fremont County Association of

-Community Service Block Grant 93.569 nong 12,724

Passed through Wyoming Dept. of Health - Mental Health &
Substance Abuse Division
-Recovery Month Activitles 093.958 none 1,000
Passed through Wyoming Dept. of Health - Community and
Famify Health Division
-Maternal Child Health 08410 93.904 nona 19,883

U8, Dept. of Homeland Security
Passad through Wyoming Office of Homeland Security

-2010 Flood Emergency Assistance FC-06 97.036 1923-DR-WY (FC-05) 13,382

-2010 Flood Emergency Assistance FC-07 97.036 1822-DR-WY (FC-07) 38,730

-2010 Flood Emergency Asslstance FC-08 97.036 1923-DR-WY (FC-D8) 10,586

-2010 Flood Emergency Asslstance FC-09 97.038 1923-DR-WY (FC-08) 22268

«2010 Flood Emergency Assistance FC-10 97.036 1923-DR-WY (FC-10) 13,427

-2010 Flood Emergency Assistance FC-11 97.036 1823-DR-WY (FC-11) 3,808

-2010 Flood Emergency Assistance FC-12 97.036 1823-DR-WY (FC-12) 32,747

-2010 Flood Emergency Assislance FC-13 97.036 1923-DR-WY (FC-13) 18,047

-2010 Flood Emergency Assistance FC-14 §7.038 1623-DR-WY {FC-14} 36.750 192,845

-Hazardous Materials Emergency Planning 97.042 11-DOT-FRE-HM-HVP-11 29,042

-intercperabie Emergengy Communications 97.055 02-GPD-FRE-IE-CGPY 10,341

-Law Enforcement Terror Prevention 97.067 10-GPD-FRE-LC-HLE1D 6,433

-Law Enforcement Terror Prevention 97.067 0B-GPD-FRE-CC-HCCA 733

-Interraperable Emergency Communications 97.067 03-GDP-FRE-IE-CGP9 10,341

-Homeland Security 2009 97.067 08-GPD-FRE-SC-HEGO B4.875

-Homeland Security 2008 97.067 0B-GPD-FRE-5C-HSGA 90,250

-Homeland Security 2008 97.067 08-GPD-FRE-CC-HCCB 3,751 196,383
Total Federal Assistance $2!044,186
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2011

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal
grant activity of Fremont County, Wyoming and is presented on the modified accrual
basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial
statements.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results:
Financial Statements

The report of independent auditor expressed a qualified opinion on the basic financial
statements of Fremont County, Wyoming.

The audit of the financial statements of Fremont County, Wyoming disclosed four
significant deficiencies in internal control.

The significant deficiencies in internal control were considered, in the aggregate, to be a
material weakness.

Federal Awards
The audit identified no material weaknesses for internal control over compliance.

The report of independent auditor expressed an unqualified opinion on compliance for
major programs.

The audit disclosed one compliance finding that is required to be reported in
accordance with Section §10(a) of Circular A-133.

Identification of Major Programs:

CFDA Name of Federal Program
Number
10.666 U.S. Department of Agriculture

Schools and Roads — Grants to
Counties Forest Reserve

66.040 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Emissions Compliant Bulldozer and Trackhoe

97.036 U.S. Department of Homeland Security
2010 Flood Emergency Assistance

The dollar threshold used to distinguish type A and B programs was $300,000.

The auditee qualified as a high-risk auditee.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings:

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances
of non-compliance related to the financial statements that are required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Finding 11-1

Condition

Criteria

Effect

Cause

Recommendation

Management’s
Response

The signers on the bank accounts are not removed timely when
they leave the organization. This occurred with two different
County's Component Units that issue their own checks, separately
from the warrant system used by the Treasurer's office.

An effective system of internal control requires that the names of
signers on the bank accounts be changed as soon as Board
members or management are no longer in their positions.

The failure to remove the unauthorized signers creates additional
risk of loss of County funds.

The Board of Directors of the two Component Units has not
maintained proper oversight over the signers of the bank accounts
in the County’s Component Units’ names.

The Board of Directors in their fiduciary capacity should implement
policies and controls to ensure that when there is a change that the
signers on the bank accounts are immediately changed.

The Fair's Office Manager has updated all bank signature cards
and will update the bank signature cards following new Board
appointments every January and whenever a resignation occurs.
The Recreation’s Office Manager has updated all bank signature
cards and will update the bank signature cards following new Board
appointments every January and whenever a resignation occurs.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Finding 11-2

Condition

Criteria

Effect

Cause

Recommendation

Management's
Response

The Weed and Pest Control District (“the District”) is required to
present their financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Best
practices dictate that the District should have an individual in the
District or within Fremont County that has the background, training
and knowledge to draft financial statements in accordance with the
financial reporting models the Weed and Pest Control District is
required to follow, including the reporting model established by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis — for
State and Local Governments (GASB 34).

The implementation of GASB 34 several years ago resulted in
significantly expanded reporting requirements, and although the
District continues to utilize and report with the fund accounting
model, the Weed and Pest Control District did not internally
prepare the year-end statements that are under the reporting
model noted above.

The preparation of financial staiements in accordance with the
accounting standards noted above was not be performed by the
internal staff of the Weed and Pest Control District or the Fremont
County.

The Weed and Pest Control District does not have the staff
available to prepare the financial statements.

The Weed and Pest Control District should evaluate their ability to
prepare financial statements in accordance with the standards
noted above, and determine if additional training or hiring would
assist with developing the appropriate internal controls over
financial reporting.

The Weed and Pest Control District will hire or contract with a
qualified accountant knowledgeable in governmental accounting to
prepare the annual financial report for the year ending June 30,
2012.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Finding 11-3

Condition

Criteria

Effect

Cause

Recommendation

Management’s
Response

Fremont County has five component units that perform cash
disbursement functions strictly within the component unit. The size
of the component units’ staff is not large enough to permit an
adequate segregation of duties for an effective system of internal
control within the departments.

An effective system of internal control requires that closely related
duties be segregated.

The concentration of closely related duties and responsibilities by a
small staff makes it difficult to establish an adequate system of
automatic internal checks on the accuracy and reliability of the
accounting records.

Within the cash disbursement cycle, the segregation of duties has
not been fully implemented. The same person, the bookkeeper,
generates purchase orders, prepares and prints checks, and
prepares them for mailing. The same person is also in charge of
reconciling bank accounts.

Although the component units may not be large enough to permit
an adequate segregation of duties for an effective system of
internal accounting control, we recommend that officials be aware
that the condition does exist and, if possible, implement preventive
controls when possible.

All Fremont County component units will implement the
segregation of three key cash disbursement controls. These
controls include the following steps: 1) The Board bookkeeper will
record all vendor, contractor and payroll liabilities and prepare
checks. 2) After inspection and approval by the Board, someone
other than the bookkeeper will mail or deliver the checks to the
payees. 3) The bank reconciliation will be prepared or reviewed by
someone other than the bookkeeper who will sign and date the
reconciliation. The County Clerks financial assistant will monitor
the implementation of these controls.

107




Fremont County, Wyoming
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Finding 11-4

Condition

Criteria

Effect

Cause

Recommendation

Management's
Response

The County's June 30, 2010 Government-wide Statement of Net
Assets incorrectly reported deferred revenues of $4,878,000, which
was overstated by $1,381,000. The correct amount of deferred
revenues as of June 30, 2010 was $3,497,000.

An effective system of internal control includes ensuring that all
amounts reported in the financial statements are reported at the
correct amounts.

In connection with performing our audit testing, we noted that as of
June 30, 2010 the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets did
not properly report the correct amount of deferred revenues. We
proposed a prior period adjustment to adjust for the overstatement
of the June 30, 2010 deferred revenues, which reduced the
beginning net assets by $1,381,000 on the June 30, 2011
Government-wide Statement of Activities. Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 115, Communicating Internal Control Related
Matters Identified in an Audit (S AS No. 115), indicates that
restatement of previously issued financial statements to reflect the
correction of a material misstatement due to error or fraud should
at least be regarded as a significant deficiency.

The County’'s management did not present the correct amount of
deferred revenues of the County as of June 30, 2010.

We recommend that additional procedures for the review of the
amounts reported by management in the financial statements be
developed, documented and implemented. The implementation of
such procedures should reduce or eliminate the need for audit
adjustments.

Government-wide financial statements are prepared by the Deputy
Treasurer. Although fund financial statements are prepared by
staff and reviewed by the Deputy Treasurer there is no internal
review of the government-wide financial reports. At this time, the
cost of providing for the review of the government-wide financial
statements prior to audit is not deemed to be cost effective.
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Section Ill — Major Federal Awards Programs Findings:

This section identifies an instance of non-compliance related to Federal Awards
programs that are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and the OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-

Profit Organizations.

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (CFDA 66.040)

Finding 11-5

Condition

Criteria

Effect

Cause

Recommendation

Management’s
Response

During the course of our audit of major Federal award programs, it came
to our attention that the County did not meet the reporting compliance
requirement per the grant agreement with the Wyoming Department of
Environmental Quality (WDEQ).

Government-wide requirements for reporting are contained in the OMB
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement Part 7, relating to performance
and special reporting of specific grant programs. The State Clean Diesel
Grant Program (CFDA 66.040) guidelines for Reports, under section
(111), states the EPA requires quarterly, interim and final progress
reports, and financial, equipment, and invention reports. The grant
agreement with the WDEQ also states, under section 6, Special
Provisions, letter |, the recipient agrees to submit quarterly progress
reports within thirty (30) days of the close of each quarter and within thirty
(30) days of submission of the final reimbursement request, and agrees
to submit a final project report including all data collected during the
pericd of the agreement. The information required to be submitted
includes emissions data to the DEQ, reports of fuel used, miles driven or
hours operated, and maintenance costs so that the effectiveness of the
Clean Diesel technology to reduce emissions and conserve diesel fuel
can be analyzed and reported to the U.S. EPA.

Failing to report the necessary reports per the EPA and WDEQ
requirements means the County is not in compliance with the grant
agreement.

Management has not maintained proper oversight over the staff charged
with coordinating the grant and its provisions with the WDEQ to ensure
compliance with its EPA reporting requirements.

The Board of Commissioners should designate an employee to review all
Federal grant award compliance requirements to ensure they are being
met and reported in a timely manner.

The vehicle maintenance supervisor was responsible for submitting the
performance reports. His failure to do so will be addressed by the Board
of County Commissioners. Management will consider establishing
additional oversight of grant reporting.
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Fremont County, Wyoming
Status of Prior Year Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Finding 10-1

Condition

Status

During the course of the audit it was noted that the inmate trust
funds, which are held and accounted for in a trustee
relationship, had become depleted due to a bookkeeping error
and had been remitted to the General Fund.

The finding has been resolved.

110

HHHHHUHHHHHHHHUHHHHI.il.iHH_HHL‘IH__H__H__N__H__IJ_______



This Page Intentionally Left Blank
1t

T TR 4. oa—— e, Rk . TR . m eriEETE Y rqMI R TWRETC IR - e T - L TR T g TRMEDT. - ¢ AR ¢ L ENETTERE e RRERA TR T TR = — | TR = 1T - R -~ —TTRETEE "=  reeayd . IR LT o —RINWADI. - ¢ WTORII  Tea I e hmbemmt. . b . . ek e



EEAAAAANAARARNARAARAARNNAIAnN AN N



